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PURPOSE: 

To assist the Council  in setting the broad vision and direction of the city in order to promote the social, 

economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of the cityõs communities in the present and for the 

future. This involves determining specific outcomes that need to be met to deliver on the vision for the 

city, and taking a holistic approach to establishing strategies, policies, bylaws, regulations and work 

programmes to achieve those goals. This committee is also responsible for assisting Council to execute 

its financial and performance monitoring obligations.  

 

Policy, Strategy and Bylaws:  

Å Develop and agree draft strategies and policies for the growth and development of the city, 

including economic, transport and infrastructure development, for engagement/public 

consultation, excluding those strategies and policies that will subsequently be required to follow 

a statutory process and will be dealt with by the Regulatory Committee. 

Å Recommend strategies and policies to Council for adoption, including those required as part of 

the Long Term Plan, and any other policies required by legislation. 

Å Monitor and review implemented strategies and policies. 

Å Undertake a full review of the City of Lower Hutt District Plan, including receiving direction from 

the Community and Environment Committee, establishing a District Plan work programme and 

monitoring its implementation. 

Å Develop and agree the Statement of Proposal for new or amended bylaws for consultation. 

Å Recommend to Council new or amended bylaws for adoption. 

Financial, Project and Performance Reporting:  

Å Recommend to Council the budgetary parameters for preparation of the Councilôs Long Term 

Plans (LTP) and Annual Plans.  

Å Monitor progress towards achievement of the Councilôs budgets and objectives as set out in the LTP 
and Annual Plans, including associated matters around the scope, funding, prioritising and timing of 
projects. 

Å Monitoring and oversight of significant projects including operational contracts, agreements, grants 
and funding. 

Å Monitor progress towards achievement of the Councilôs outcomes as set out in the Leisure & 
Wellbeing, Urban Growth, Infrastructure and Environmental Sustainability Strategies and their 
associated plans. 
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Membership:  13 

Meeting  Cycle: Meets on an eight weekly basis, as required or  at the 

requisition of the  Chair  

Quorum:  Half of the members  

Reports to: Council  



 

 

Å Monitor the integrity of reported performance information, both financial and non-financial, at 

the completion of Councilôs Annual Report, and external accountability reporting 

requirements. 

Å Review and recommend to Council the adoption of the Annual Report. 

Å Recommend to Council the approval of annual Statements of Corporate Intent for Council 

Controlled Organisations and Council Controlled Trading Organisations and granting 

shareholder approval of major transactions.  

Å Monitor progress against the CCO and CCTO Statements of Intent and make 

recommendations to Council in the exercising of Council powers, as the shareholder, in 

relation to Council Controlled Organisations/Council Controlled Trading Organisations under 

sections 65 to 72 of the Local Government Act. 

Å Oversee compliance with Councilôs Treasury Risk Management Policy. 

Å Consider and determine requests for rates remissions. 

Å Consider and determine requests for loan guarantees from qualifying community organisations 

where the applications are within the approved guidelines and policy limits. 

Å Approve and oversee monitoring around Community Funding Strategy grants. 

General: 

Å Maintain an overview of work programmes carried out by the Councilôs organisational activities. 

Å Conduct any consultation processes required on issues before the Committee. 

Å Approval and forwarding of submissions on matters related to the Committeeôs area 

of responsibility. 

Å Any other matters delegated to the Committee by Council in accordance with 

approved policies and bylaws. 

 
    



 

 

HUTT CITY COUNCIL  
 

POLICY, FINANCE AND STRATEGY COMMITT EE 
 

Meeting to be held in the Council Chambers, 2nd Floor, 30 Laings Road, Lower Hutt 
on 

 Tuesday 3 March 2020 commencing at 2.00pm. 
 

ORDER PAPER 
 

PUBLIC BUSINESS   
 

1. APOLOGIES    

2. PUBLIC COMMENT  

Generally up to 30 minutes is set aside for public comment (three minutes per 
speaker on items appearing on the agenda). Speakers may be asked questions on 
the matters they raise.  

3. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATIONS  

Members are reminded of the need to be vigilant to stand aside from decision 
making when a conflict arises between their role as a member and any private or 
other external interest they might have   

POLICY, STRATEGY AND BYLAWS : 

4. RECOMMENDATIONS TO C OUNCIL  

i) Hutt City Community Facilities Trust Draft Statement of Intent 
2020/21 to 2022/23 (20/10) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/39 by the Senior Management Accountant 9 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendations contained within the report be endorsed.  
 

ii ) Seaview Marina Limited Draft Statement of Intent 2020/21 to 
2022/23 (20/11) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/40 by the Senior Management Accountant 28 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION:  

That the recommendations contained within the report be endorsed.  
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iii ) Urban Plus Group Draft Statement of Intent 2020/21 to 2022/23 
(20/12) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/41 by the Senior Accountant 52 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That recommendation parts (i), (ii) and (iii)  be endorsed and  
 
a new part  (iv)  to read as follow: 
(iv)  Requests officers to arrange a workshop for councillors outlining 
options for potential changes to the UPL statement of intent, with a view 
to bringing back to the next meeting of the Policy, Finance and Strategy 
Committee draft changes to discuss with the UPL board. 

 

iv ) Council performance report for the half year ended 31 December 2019 
(20/60) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/42 by the Budgeting and Reporting Manager  84 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendations contained within the report be endorsed.  
 

v) Three Waters Half Year Performance (20/161) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/67 by the Strategic Advisor, City and Community 
Services 170 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendation contained within the report be endorsed.  

5. THREE WATERS EARLY I NVESTMENT SIGNALS FO R 2021/31 LONG 
TERM PLAN  (20/58) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/47 by the Strategic Advisor, City and Community 
Services 181 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendations contained within the report be endorsed.  
 

6. URBAN PLUS GROUP SIX  MONTH REPORT TO 31 D ECEMBER 2019 
(20/15) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/45 by the Senior Accountant 200 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendation contained within the report be endorsed. 
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7. FULL DISTRICT PLAN R EVIEW - PROCESS, TIMING AND 
RESOURCING  (20/16) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/46 by the Head of District Plan Policy  219 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendations contained within the report be endorsed.  
 

8. SUBMISSION ON PROPOS ED NATIONAL POLICY S TATEMENT 
FOR INDIGENOUS BIODIVERS ITY  (20/103) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/49 by the Head of District Plan Policy  227 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendations contained within the report be endorsed.  
 

9. THE HUTT CITY COMMUN ITY FACILITIES TRUST  SIX MONTH 
REPORT TO 31 DECEMBER 2019 (20/13) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/43 by the Senior Management Accountant 235 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendation contained within the report be endorsed.  
 

10. SEAVIEW MARINA LIMITED SIX MONTH RE PORT TO 31 
DECEMBER 2019 (20/14) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/44 by the Senior Management Accountant 250 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendation contained within the report be endorsed.  
 

11. STRATEGIC PROPERTY PORTFOLIO - UPDATE  (20/82) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/48 by the Head of City Growth  261 

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendation contained within the report be endorsed.  
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12. DRAFT WASTE MANAGEME NT AND MINIMISATION BYLAW 
TEMPLATE  (20/147) 

Report No. PFSC2020/2/68 by the Manager, Sustainability and Resilience 265  

CHAIRõS RECOMMENDATION: 

That the recommendation contained within the report be endorsed.  

 

13. QUESTIONS  

With reference to section 32 of Standing Orders, before putting a question a 
member shall endeavour to obtain the information. Questions shall be concise 
and in writing  and handed to the Chair prior to the commencement of the 
meeting.    
 
 
Toi Lealofi  
COMMITTEE ADVISOR  
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Policy, Finance and Strategy 
Committee  

10 January 2020 

 
 
 

File: (20/10) 

 
 

 
 
Report no: PFSC2020/2/39 

 

Hutt City Community Facilities Trust Draft 
Statement of Intent 2020/21 to 2022/23  

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of the report is to provide a review of the draft Statement of 
Intent (SOI) for the Hutt City Community Facilities Trust (CFT) as delivered 
to Council for Councilõs consideration. 

Recommendations 

That the Committee recommends that Council: 

(i) notes that the Hutt City Community Facilities Trust (CFT) Board has submitted 
a draft Statement of Intent (SOI) 2020/21 - 2022/23, attached as Appendix 1 to 
the report, in accordance with the Local Government Act 2002; 

(ii)  notes that officers have reviewed the draft SOI for compliance with the Local 
Government Act 2002 and provided their analysis;  

(iii)  receives the draft SOI; 

(iv)  reviews the draft SOI and considers if any modifications should be made; and  

(v) provides comment for the CFT Board to consider in finalising its SOI 
(including any modifications suggested by the Committee arising under 
recommendation (iv) above). 

 

Background 

2. The Local Government Act 2002 (LGA) requires the board of a Council 
Controlled Organisation (CCO) to deliver to its shareholders a draft SOI on 
or before 1 March of each year. 

Discussion 

3. The Hutt City Community Facilities Trust (CFT) Board has submitted a draft 
SOI to Council.  This is attached as Appendix 1 to the report.  
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4. The board of a CCO must provide informati on prescribed by the LGA for the 
SOI, to the extent is appropriate given the organisation form of the CCO.  
The information is required to be provided for the 2020/21 financial year 
and the two years following that (section 9, Schedule 8 of the LGA).   

5. The compliance of the company with the legislative requirements for the SOI 
and a summary of the amendments proposed by the Board for their 
2020/2023 SOI are detailed below: 

Required Content  Draft SOI Content  

(a) the objectives of the Trust The objectives of CFT are stated. 

(b) a statement of the boardõs approach 
to governance of the group 

A statement is included.  

(c) the nature and scope of the 
activities undertaken by the group  

The nature and scope of activities are 
outlined.  

(d) the ratio of consolidated 
shareholdersõ funds to total assets, and 
the definition of those terms  

The terms are defined.  No shareholder 
funds are distributed to CFT.  

(e) the accounting policies of the group Accounting policies are outlined.  

(f) the performance targets and other 
measures by which performance of the 
group may be judged in relation to its 
objectives 

Performance targets are included. 

(g) an estimate of the amount or 
proportion of accumulated profits and 
capital reserves that is intended to be 
distributed to the shareholders  

There is no intention to pay a dividend 
to the shareholder. 

(h) the kind of information to be 
provided to the shareholders by the 
group during the course of those 
financial years, including the 
information to be inc luded in each half 
yearly report  

The kind of information to be provided 
is outlined. The Trust will provide 
annual and six-monthly reports.  

(i) the procedures to be followed 
before any member or the group 
subscribes for, purchases, or otherwise 
acquires shares in any company or 
other organisation  

Information included. Express approval 
from Council is required.  

(j) any activities for which the board 
seeks compensation from any local 
authority (whether or not the local 
authority has agreed to provide the 
compensation) 

No compensation anticipated.  

(k) the boards estimate of the 
commercial value of the shareholdersõ 

A statement as to the net value of 
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investment in the group and the 
manner in which and the times at 
which that value is to be reassessed 

shareholders investment is provided.  

(l) any other matters that are agreed by 
the shareholders and the board 

There is a section added on 
environmental objectives. 

 
6. With the Naenae Community Hub p roject put on hold by Council, CFT does 

not currently have any new development projects assigned to it.  As such 
CFT will over the next three years focus its activities in the following areas:  

¶ Completing  the bedding in of the recently constructed RICOH Sports 

Centre at Fraser Park. The new building is a complex structure and the 

CFT will work with the tenant, Fraser Park Sportsville (FPS), to best 

optimise the use and to capture the benefits of the technologies and 

infrastructure imbedded in the complex.  

¶ Working with FPS and the community to maximise the use of the new 

facility.  

¶ Putting in place maintenance plans and regimes for the RICOH Sports 

Centre that will ensure the new centre is maintained to a high and safe 

standard.  

¶ Working with the Naenae Bowls Club and the community to maximise 

the use of the facility and to improve its ability to fully fund all 

operational costs, including insurance, rates and long-term maintenance. 

¶ Putting in place m aintenance plans and regimes for the Naenae Bowls 

Centre that will ensure the centre is maintained to a high standard.  

¶ Continue to manage, in partnership with the tenant (FPS), the artificial 

turfs at Fraser Park. 

¶ Continue to manage in partnership with  the tenant (Council), the Walter 

Nash Centre at Taita. 

¶ Prepare and implement in partnership with the tenant (Council), 

maintenance plans for the Koraunui Stokes Valley Community Hub.  

¶ In partnership with the tenant (Council), make modest improvements to 

the old Walter Nash Centre to bring that building up to modern 

standards. 

 

7. CFT will also assist with the development of any other community or 
sporting buildings which the Council has f unding for and requests CFT to 
project manage. 

Options / Legal Considerations 

8. Council may suggest changes which the Board must consider in finalising its 
SOI.  The Board must consider within two months of 1 March any comments 
on the draft SOI that are made by the shareholders.  The Board must deliver 
a completed SOI to Council on or before 30 June 2019. 
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9. Outside of this current process, the Council may, by resolution, require the 
Board to modify the SOI and the Board must comply (section 5, Schedule 8 
LGA), provided that Council first consults the Board.  

Financial Considerations 

10. The draft SOI contains the financial forecasts for CFT for the three year 
period commencing 1 July 2020. 

11. The Total Equity of CFT is estimated to be $38.9M at 30 June 2021. 

Appendices 

No. Title  Page 

1ᶓ  Appendix 1 CFT SOI 2020-2023 DRAFT 13 

 
 
Author: Sharon Page 
Senior Management Accountant 
 
 
Author: Darrin Newth  
Financial Accounting Manager  
 
 
 
Approved By: Brent Kibblewhite  
General Manager Corporate Services  
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Introduction  
This Statement of Intent has been prepared by the Hutt City Community Facilities Trust (CFT), as 

required under Section 64(1) of the Local Government Act 2002 for a Council Controlled Organisation 

(CCO).  It gives an overview of the CFT, the objectives we will work to achieve, the activities we will 

undertake, and how we will measure our performance.  It covers the three year period to 30 June 

2023. 

The CFT was established by the Hutt City Council (Council) in August 2012 as a CCO to promote, 

develop, own, operate, and maintain recreational, leisure, and community facilities in Lower Hutt.  

Over the next 30 years a number of facilities in Lower Hutt will have to be upgraded or replaced.  

Changing preferences in the community for the way recreation, leisure, and community services are 

delivered led HCC to adopt an integrated facilities approach to new developments, which will allow for 

a range of services to be accessed in one place.  The Walter Nash Centre completed by the CFT in late 

2015 is a good example of an integrated community facility. The Walter Mildenhall Park 

Redevelopment completed in 2017 at Naenae, the Koraunui Stokes Valley Community Hub also 

completed in 2017 and the Ricoh Sports Centre at Fraser Park, completed in 2019, are examples of 

projects that also follow the integrated facilities model. 

The main role of the CFT has been to develop and then maintain a range of fit -for-purpose, leisure, 

recreation and community facilities that are attractive to the residents and visitors of Lower Hutt.  

Lƴ нлмф ǘƘŜ ǘǊǳǎǘŜŜǎ ŎƻƴŘǳŎǘŜŘ ŀ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŎ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /C¢Ωǎ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ 

while it will remain a landlord of its existing facilities, most day to day work to provide ongoing 

management for these is best conducted by Council staff as is future project management of new 

ōǳƛƭŘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ōƻŀǊŘ ŎƻƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ /C¢Ωǎ Ƴŀƛƴ ŦƻŎǳǎ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ǘƻ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜ ƭŜŀŘŜǊǎƘƛǇ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛŘŜntification, 

ǇǊƻƳƻǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŦǳƴŘǊŀƛǎƛƴƎ ŦƻǊ ƴŜǿ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘǎ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ƻǾŜǊŀƭƭ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎΦ 

Where appropriate, the CFT will assist with fundraising work to attract donations for these 

developments from philanthropic organisations, the corporate sector and the community.  The Trust 

will do this by acting as a voice for community facilities in Lower Hutt, using the skills and expertise its 

trustees bring from valuable experience in business, asset management, and community affiliation. 

The CFT will strive to have a positive and productive working relationship with Council. The Trust will 

ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘŜ ǘƻ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ ƻǳǘŎƻƳŜǎ ƻŦ ŀ Ŏƛǘȅ ǘƘŀǘ ƛǎ ŀŎǘƛǾŜƭȅ ŜƴƎŀƎŜŘ ƛƴ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎΣ 

and a city that promotes strong and inclusive communities.  Accordingly, the CFT Board looks forward 

to working with Council to optimise the overall social, cultural, health and economic wellbeing of 

Lower Hutt.  

Objectives  

The objectives of the CFT will follow section 59 of the Local Government Act 2002, which outlines the 

principal objectives for a Council Controlled Organisation as follows:  

 (a) Achieve the objectives of its shareholders, both commercial and non-commercial, as specified 
in the Statement of Intent;  

(b)  Be a good employer; and 
(c)  Exhibit a sense of social and environmental responsibility by having regard to the interests of 

the community in which it operates and by endeavouring to accommodate or encourage these 
when able to do so. 
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In addition to the statutory objectives, the CFT Deed of Trust has a range of charitable objectives 

ŘŜǎƛƎƴŜŘ ǘƻ ǇǊƻƳƻǘŜ ǘƘŜ ƘŜŀƭǘƘ ŀƴŘ ǿŜƭƭōŜƛƴƎ ƻŦ [ƻǿŜǊ IǳǘǘΩǎ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘƛŜǎΦ ¢ƘŜǎŜ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎ ŀǊŜ ǘƻΥ 

¶ Promote, operate, develop, and maintain community facilities in Lower Hutt through the 

management of the interests and rights relating to these facilities. 

¶ Assist with attracting fundraising from the community and philanthropic organisations for the 

development of high quality community facilities. 

¶ Provide strategic planning, in partnership with HCC, in relation to the ongoing development and 

administration of community facilities in Lower Hutt.  

¶ Provide high quality amenities which attract and engage, promoting the health and well-being of 

residents of and visitors to Lower Hutt.  

¶ Practise prudent commercial administration of high quality community, recreation, and leisure 

facilities, with a view that they will be financially sustainable.  

 

Environmental objectives 

 

¢ƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊƛƴƎ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ȅŜŀǊ ǿƘŀǘ ǿŜ Ŏŀƴ Řƻ ŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜƭȅ ǘƻ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘ ǘƘŜ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ 

environmental objectives. In particular we will give consideration to the potential impacts of climate 

ŎƘŀƴƎŜ ŀƴŘ ΨŎŀǊōƻƴ ȊŜǊƻΩ ƛƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜǎΣ ŀƴŘ ǿƘŀǘ ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳtion the trust can make to this. We will work 

with and hold discussions with Council staff to ensure we are working on a co-ordinated basis. 

 

Health and Safety 

 

The Board sees the health and safety of its staff, contractors, the public and all users of its facilities as 

a top priority. Enhanced reporting to the Board to ensure that there is the best possible health and 

safety practices and culture in all its facilities is a top priority for the year. 

Activities  

This draft Statement of Intent has been provided at a busy time for Council after the recent election 

and restructuring of its management team. It has also been busy with its consideration of the future 

for the Naenae Pool. As a consequence of its initial plans to rebuild that in some form, it has signalled 

the suspension of various other funding allocations for gym sports and the proposed Wainuiomata 

{ǇƻǊǘǎ ŀƴŘ /ƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ IǳōΣ ōƻǘƘ ƻŦ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǿŜǊŜ ǇŀǊǘ ƻŦ /C¢Ωǎ ƭƻƴƎŜǊ ǘŜǊƳ ǿƻǊƪ ǇƭŀƴΦ ¢ƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ Ƙŀǎ 

not received from Council the usual letter of expectation to guide it in the completion of this SOI thus 

the plan for the year is limited to managing the existing facilities of the Trust until Council makes its 

broader decisions on funding priorities for any new project and what role it would like to see CFT play 

in them. 

In the next three years the CFT will focus its activities in the following areas: 

¶ Completing the bedding in of the recently constructed Ricoh Sports Centre at Fraser Park. The 

new building is a complex structure and the CFT will work with the tenant, Fraser Park 

Sportsville (FPS), to best optimise the use and to capture the benefits of the technologies and 

infrastructure imbedded in the complex.  

¶ Working with FPS and the community to maximise the use of the new facility. 
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¶ Putting in place maintenance plans and regimes for the Ricoh Sports Centre that will ensure 

the new centre is maintained to a high and safe standard.  

¶ Working with the Naenae Bowls Club and the community to maximise the use of the facility 

and to improve its ability to fully fund all operational costs, including insurance, rates and long-

term maintenance. 

¶ Putting in place maintenance plans and regimes for the Naenae Bowls Centre that will ensure 

the centre is maintained to a high standard. 

¶ Continue to manage, in partnership with the tenant (FPS), the artificial turfs at Fraser Park 

¶ Continue to manage in partnership with the tenant (Council), the Walter Nash Centre at Taita. 

¶ Prepare and implement in partnership with the tenant (Council), maintenance plans for the 

Koraunui Stokes Valley Community Hub.  

¶ In partnership with the tenant (Council), make modest improvements to the old Walter Nash 

Centre to bring that building up to modern standards 

¶ The development of any other community or sporting buildings which the Council has funding 

for and requests the CFT to project manage. 

Governance 
The CFT board of trustees comprises five members, one of whom is a Councillor appointed by Council.  

All other trustees are appointed by Council in line with its Appointment and Remuneration of Directors 

Policy.  

The Chairperson is appointed by the trustees.   

The trust board meets six weekly. 

The CFT adopts an approach to governance that is in accordance with the best practice statements 

produced by the Institute of Directors New Zealand (Incorporated).  This will include an annual 

evaluation of the effectiveness of the Trust board through whole of board and individual self-

assessments. 

The Trustees of the CFT must act in accordance first and foremost with the charitable purposes of the 

Trust.  

The CFT will give effect to the Hutt City Council Long Term Plan and act consistently with other Council 

plans, strategies and policies.  

The CFT will adopt in its relationship with Council ways of working that reflect Council and CCOs as 

partners in the delivery of shared outcomes. This includes a commitment to the agreed Memorandum 

of Understanding between the Trust and Council that was signed in the 2012/13 period.   This includes:  

¶ A commitment to collaboration. 

¶ A commitment to openness and transparency. 



Attachment 1  Appendix 1 CFT SOI 2020 -2023 DRAFT 

 

 

DEM15-4-2 - 20/10 - Hutt City Community Facilities Trust Draft Statement of Intent 2020/21 to 
2022/23 

Page  18 

 

¶ !ŘƘŜǊŜƴŎŜ ǘƻ ŀ Ψƴƻ ǎǳǊǇǊƛǎŜǎΩ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ  - where it is appropriate the CFT trust board will bring to 

/ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŀǘǘŜƴǘƛƻƴ ƛƳƳŜŘƛŀǘŜƭȅ ŀƭƭ ƴŜǿ ŀƴŘ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘǎΣ ƛƴƛǘiatives, and/or issues. 

¶ A commitment by the CFT to the aims and objectives of the Council Long Term Integrated 

Community Facilities Plan. 

¶ A commitment by Council where it sells recreation or similar land or any other identified 

community facility, that the profits arising from that sale shall be vested in a reserve for future 

investment in reserve development, which may include the development of associated community 

facilities by the CFT and Council. The use of the reserve will be negotiated between Council and the 

CFT. 

 

The CFT Deed of Trust allows the CFT the ability to raise a loan to part fund approved CFT projects.  

The CFT will not however raise any significant loans without consulting the shareholder. 

 

Office space, office equipment, IT and administrative support is provided to the CFT by Council. This is 

expected to continue. 

2ÁÔÉÏ ÏÆ #ÏÎÓÏÌÉÄÁÔÅÄ 3ÈÁÒÅÈÏÌÄÅÒÓȭ &ÕÎÄÓ ÔÏ 4ÏÔÁÌ !ÓÓÅÔÓ 

Definition of Terms  

{ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ CǳƴŘǎΥ  Represent the net equity the shareholder has contributed to the Trust since its 

incorporation. This amount includes issued share capital, revaluation reserves, and retained earnings. 

There are currently no shareholder funds distributed to the CFT. 

Total Assets:  Represent the total assets both intangible and tangible of the CFT, disclosed in 

accordance with applicable financial reporting standards. For completeness it is noted that any tax 

liabilities in respect of GST and deferred tax are classified as liabilities irrespective of them being a 

debit or credit balance.  

Accounting Policies of the CFT 

Financial Statements  

The Financial Statements will comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand (NZ 

GAAP). They will comply with NZ IFRS and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards. Financial 

statements will also comply with the Local Government Act 2002. 

General Accounting Policies 

Accounting policies adopted will be consistent with the New Zealand equivalent of International 

Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) issued by the XRB (External Reporting Board). 

Particular Accounting Policies  

Recognition of Income ς Revenue will be recognised when an invoice is raised after service is provided. 

Other transactions that comply with the definition of "Revenue" in the Statement of Concepts issued 

by the XRB (External Reporting Board) will also be recognised as revenue. 

Goods and Services Tax 

Financial statements will be prepared on a GST exclusive basis. 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term 

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable will be stated at net realisable value. 

Investments 

Investments will be stated at fair value. 

Property Plant and Equipment  

Property plant and equipment is shown at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Consolidation  

The purchase method will be applied to prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements (if required). 

Leases 

Cost of operating leases (if any) will be recognised as expenditure over the term of the lease. 

Borrowing  

Borrowing is recognised in the balance sheet on a fair value basis. 

Taxation  

As the CFT has been established as a charitable trust, it should not be liable for income tax. If the Trust 

does engage in any activity making it liable for income tax, the income tax expense will be calculated 

after allowance for permanent differences and any group loss offsets. 

Funding Commitments  

Funding commitments are recognised as a liability and asset until such time that the community facility 

development is undertaken.  At this time it will be recognised as revenue. 
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Performance Targets  

Performance indicators for the CFT are as follows: 

 

Indicator and measure Target 2020/2023 

Operational Management 

¶ Operational expenditure is within budget 

¶ All reporting requirements set by Council and the Board 
of CFT are met in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2002, the CFT Statement of Intent and 
the CFT Deed of Trust 

 
 
100% 
 

Annual Report by 30/9/20, 30/9/21 and 
30/9/22 
SOI and six monthly report by 1/3/21, 
1/3/22 and 1/3/23 

Facilities Management 

¶ All facilities maintain legal compliance, WOFs and/or 
certification 
 

¶ All facilities have in place an agreement to lease within 
three months of completion 
 
 

¶ All facilities have detailed maintenance plans in place 
within 12 months of completion 

 
 
100% Building safety upheld 
 
 
100% Legal partnerships covering leases 
and maintenance are agreed with the 
principal tenants   
 
100% Maintenance programmes 
ƛƴǎǘƛǘǳǘŜŘ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ŦŀŎƛƭƛǘƛŜǎΩ ŀƳŜƴƛǘȅ 
values are retained and are safe for users 
 

Environmental Objectives 
 

¶ Consider how the board can effectively support the 
/ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŜƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎΦ  Lƴ ǇŀǊǘƛŎǳƭŀǊ ƎƛǾŜ 
consideration to potential impacts of climate change 
ŀƴŘ ΨŎŀǊōƻƴ ȊŜǊƻΩ ƛƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜǎΣ ŀƴŘ ǿƘŀǘ ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘƛƻƴ ǘƘŜ 
Trust can make to this. 

 

 
 
Potential impact assessment and action 
plan report completed by 30 June 2021 

Health and Safety 
 

¶ Enhanced reporting to the Board to ensure best 
possible health and safety practices and culture are in 
all CFT facilities.  

¶ All CFT construction projects have Health and Safety 
plans and monitoring in place.  
 

 
 
Monitoring is in place and reporting to 
the Board by 30 June 2021 
 
 
100% compliance 
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Prospective Statement of Financial Performance  
 

 

 

  

Prospective Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses
Forecast Budget Plan Plan

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Operational grants 350,000 250,000 250,000 100,000

Rental revenue 598,482 602,859 608,008 613,311

Sponsorships 54,500 54,500 54,500 54,500

Additional funding from HCC 585,229 0 0 0

LTAR& M Fund revenue 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000

Finance revenue 1,529 277 277 277

Other revenue 258,097 2,705 2,705 2,705

Total revenue 1,861,837 924,341 929,490 784,793

Trustee fees 18,798 19,000 19,000 19,000

Ground rentals 12,688 12,688 12,688 12,688

Insurance 249,052 259,389 265,472 272,108

Maintenance fee to HCC 192,909 110,000 110,000 110,000

Audit fees 19,499 19,497 19,497 19,497

Support 0 28,642 28,642 28,642

Specialist services 22,315 30,000 0 0

Tenant support 0 100,000 80,000 80,000

Maintenance 283,826 7,430 7,430 7,430

Rates 87,986 90,857 93,825 96,894

Water charges 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

Finance expenses 94,759 94,759 94,759 94,759

Total expenses 985,832 776,262 735,313 745,018

Net surplus / (deficit) before depreciation 876,005 148,079 194,177 39,775

Depreciation 959,498 959,496 959,496 959,496

Net surplus / (deficit) after depreciation -83,494 -811,417 -765,319 -919,721
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Prospective Statement of Movements in Equity  
 

 

  

Forecast Budget Plan Plan

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Balance at 1 July 38,146,409 38,062,916 37,251,499 36,486,179

Net (surplus) / deficit after depreciation -83,494 -811,417 -765,319 -919,721

Balance at 30 June 38,062,916 37,251,499 36,486,179 35,566,458
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Prospective Statement of Financial  Position  
 

 

  

Forecast Budget Plan Plan

As at 30 June 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Cash and cash equivalents 182,292 269,563 437,597 440,976

Debtors and other receivables 19,352 19,352 19,352 0

Prepayments 33,089 33,817 34,554 35,321

GST receivable 11,226 16,807 0 0

Advances related parties 0 0 0 0

Total current assets 245,959 339,538 491,503 476,296

Property, plant and equipment 40,876,525 39,917,029 38,957,532 37,998,036

Assets under construction 296,933 296,933 296,933 296,933

Total non current assets 41,173,458 40,213,961 39,254,465 38,294,969

Total assets 41,419,417 40,553,500 39,745,968 38,771,265

Creditors and other payables -21,001 -21,001 -21,001 -21,001

GST payable 0 0 -12,288 -11,806

Advances related parties

Total current liabilities -21,001 -21,001 -33,288 -32,806

Borrowings -3,335,500 -3,281,000 -3,226,500 -3,172,000

Total non current liabilities -3,335,500 -3,281,000 -3,226,500 -3,172,000

Total liabilities -3,356,501 -3,302,001 -3,259,788 -3,204,806

Net assets 38,062,917 37,251,499 36,486,180 35,566,459

Accumulated funds 36,633,018 35,807,601 35,028,282 34,094,561

LTAR&M fund 52,861 66,861 80,861 94,861

Asset revaluation reserve 1,377,037 1,377,037 1,377,037 1,377,037

Total equity 38,062,916 37,251,499 36,486,179 35,566,458
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Prospective Statement of Cash Flows 
 

  

Forecast Budget Plan Plan

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash was provided from:

Operational grant from HCC 350,000 250,000 250,000 100,000

Receipts from rents 600,098 602,859 608,008 632,663

Additional funding from HCC 585,229 0 0 0

Receipts from sponsorships 54,500 54,500 54,500 54,500

Receipts from other sources 258,097 2,705 2,705 2,705

Interest received 1,529 277 277 277

Net GST received -9,777 0 29,094 -482

Cash was applied to:

Payments to employees -18,536 -19,000 -19,000 -19,000

Payments to suplliers -1,058,658 -663,230 -622,291 -632,026

Interest paid -94,759 -94,759 -94,759 -94,759

Net GST paid 0 -5,581 0 0

Net Cash Inflows / (Outflows) from Operating Activities 667,724 127,771 208,534 43,879

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash was provided from:

Other investment receipts 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000

Cash was applied to:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment -666,959

Net Cash Inflows / (Outflows) from Investing Activities -652,959 14,000 14,000 14,000

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash was provided from:

Contribution from Hutt City Council 0 0 0 0

Proceeds from borrowings 0 0 0 0

Cash was applied to:

Contribution to Hutt City Council -1,148 0 0 0

Repayment of borrowings 0 -54,500 -54,500 -54,500

Net Cash Inflows / (Outflows) from Financing Activities -1,148 -54,500 -54,500 -54,500

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,617 87,271 168,034 3,379

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 168,674 182,292 269,562 437,596

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 182,292 269,562 437,596 440,975
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Proportion of Accumulated Profits/Capital Reserves 

Distributed to Shareholder  
The CFT is a non-profit entity, and any accumulated profits and/or capital reserves are to be used to 

ŦǳƭŦƛƭ ǘƘŜ ¢ǊǳǎǘΩǎ ŎƘaritable objectives. There is no current requirement to distribute a proportion of 

these funds to Council. 

The CFT Depreciation Policy  
The CFT is still evolving policy with respect to the establishment of cost sharing arrangements 

between itself and sporting bodies and individuals who will use its facilities, buildings and artificial 

turfs. Wherever possible the CFT will seek to deliver to the users, debt free buildings and facilities at 

a price which will encourage and stimulate sporting and community participation. 

The accounts published above assume that CFT will strike a facilities/building and turf rental that is 

designed to raise sufficient funds to maintain the asset over the next 25 years.  

The CFT is however mindful that some of its assets will have a life well beyond 25 years and could 

ǎǘƛƭƭ ōŜ ƛƴ ǳǎŜ ƛƴ тр ȅŜŀǊǎΩ ǘƛƳŜΦ tǊŜŘƛŎǘƛƴƎ ǿƘŀǘ ǎǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ŦŀŎƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŀ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ ƳƛƎƘǘ ƴŜŜŘ ƛƴ тр 

years is fraught and the CFT will not attempt to do this. It has therefore resolved to not build into its 

rental or long-term maintenance strategy an allowance to fund the replacement of an asset older 

than 25 years. The financial accounts above reflect this policy. Maintenance costs for an asset life of 

up to 25 years are generally funded out of user charges. Major assets like roofs, lifts and turf carpets 

which require replacement at the end of their predictable known life, will be funded by a specific 

arrangement with Council, or Council, the CFT and the tenant combined.  

Because the CFT is still evolving its rental and depreciation charges, negotiations to fix agreed rentals 

with Council and its other tenants are ongoing. Further research, designed to more accurately 

ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜ ǘƘŜ ŀŎǘǳŀƭ ŘŜǇǊŜŎƛŀǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ƳŀƛƴǘŜƴŀƴŎŜ Ŏƻǎǘǎ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /C¢Ωǎ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ƻŦ ƛǘs 

tenants to meet those costs, may lead to a change in the above policy and associated CFT budgets 

for the years beyond 2019/20. 

Information to be provided to Shareholders  
In each year the CFT shall comply with the reporting requirements specified for Council Controlled 

Organisations under the Local Government Act 2002, the Companies Act 1993 and other relevant 

regulations. 

In particular, it shall provide the following: 

¶ Statement of Intent 

 A draft Statement of Intent by 1 March detailing all matters required under the Local 

Government Act 2002. 
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¶ Annual Report 

 Within three months  after the end of each financial year, the CFT will provide an annual 

report which provides a comparison of its performance with the Statement of Intent, with 

an explanation of any material variances, audited consolidated financial statements for the 

ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ȅŜŀǊΣ ŀƴŘ ŀƴ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ όƛƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǎŜŎǘƛƻƴǎ стΣ су ŀƴŘ сф ƻŦ ǘƘŜ [D! 

2002). 

¶ Half-Yearly Report 

 Within two months after the end of the first half of each financial year the CFT shall provide 

a  report on the operations of the Trust to enable an informed assessment of its 

performance, including financial statements, and progress on activities and projects (in 

accordance with section 66 of the LGA 2002). 

Procedures to be followed before members acquire shares in 

other groups etc.  
Subscription for shares in any other Company or interest in any other organisation will only take 

place with express prior approval from Council. 

Activities for which the Board seeks compensation from a local 

authority  
It is not anticipated that the Trust will seek compensation from any local authority otherwise than in 

the context of the normal contractual relationship with Hutt City Council. 

If the Trust has undertaken to obtain or has obtained compensation from its shareholders in respect 

of any activity, this undertaking or the amount of compensation obtained will be recorded in: 

¶ The annual report of the CFT; and 

¶ The annual report of the Hutt City Council. 

Board estimate oÆ ÔÈÅ ÃÏÍÍÅÒÃÉÁÌ ÖÁÌÕÅ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÓÈÁÒÅÈÏÌÄÅÒȭÓ 

investment in the group  
¢ƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ǿƛƭƭ ŎƻƴŘǳŎǘ ŀƴ ŀǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¢ǊǳǎǘΦ  ¢ƘŜ 

ŀǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ƴŜǘ ŀǎǎŜǘ ǾŀƭǳŜ ǎƘƻǿƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¢ǊǳǎǘΩǎ ǎƛȄ-monthly report.  

Following completion of the RICOH Sports Centre at Fraser Park, the estimated replacement value of 

ǘƘŜ ¢ǊǳǎǘΩǎ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ƛǎ ƴƻǿ $41 million. 
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Other Management Issues  

Health and Safety in Employment 

CFT will maintain best industry practice and ensure 100% compliance with legislated obligations for 

its sites and buildings.  

Community Outcomes 

For the past five years CFT has been in building and development mode, it will now commit more 

resources and work with Council officers to monitor and report on the outcomes of the new CFT 

facilities. The CFT facilities have had a significant positive impact on the communities that surround 

them; however this has not been well researched or documented. 

Long Term Facility Planning  

The CFT has prepared 20 year maintenance plans for all of its buildings and other sporting assets and 

will now work with Council officers to prepare funding plans for that work. While some of the costs 

will be met from tenant rentals, more significant expenditure, for example on the cost of reroofing a 

major building like the Walter Nash, will need to be determined and agreed with Council. 

Business Continuity 

CFT is refining management practices and back up plans which will become operational in the event 

of unforeseen circumstances and natural disasters so that any events will have a minimal impact on 

the future operation of its facilities and assets. 

Insurances 

CFT will maintain appropriate insurances and/or require its tenants to have appropriate insurances, 

to mitigate risk of portfolio damage, business interruption and professional indemnity. This will 

ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎ ŀƴŘ hŦŦƛŎŜ .ŜŀǊŜǊǎΩ ŎƻǾŜǊ ǿƘŜǊŜ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜΦ 

Emergency Preparedness 

CFT will continue to develop and maintain systems and procedures to best position itself and its 

facilities to deal with emergency situations.  

Environmental Objectives  

CFT staff are working with Council staff and consultants to formulate an environmental strategy for 

CFT that could change the way CFT builds and manages its sporting infrastructure and buildings. It is 

probable that CFT will not in future use gas heating in its buildings and will consider changing 

existing gas units at the end of their working life. CFT is already working to include solar power units 

on its buildings and will make provision for such units on future buildings. CFT will also investigate 

designing future buildings under the Green Star rating system if such an approach is affordable. 
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Policy, Finance and Strategy 
Committee  

10 January 2020 

 
 
 

File: (20/11) 

 
 

 
 
Report no: PFSC2020/2/40 

 

Seaview Marina Limited Draft Statement of 
Intent 2020/21 to 2022/23  

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of the report is to provide a review of the draft 2020-2023 
Statement of Intent for (SOI) Seaview Marina Limited  (SML) as delivered to 
Council for Councilõs consideration. 

Recommendations 

That the Committee recommends that Council: 

(i) notes that the Board of Seaview Marina Limited (SML) has submitted a draft 
Statement of Intent (SOI) 2020-2023, attached as Appendix 1, in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2002; 

(ii)  notes that officers have reviewed the draft SOI for compliance with the Local 
Government Act 2002 and provided their analysis;  

(iii)  receives the draft SOI; 

(iv)  reviews the draft SOI and considers if any modifications should be made; and 

(v) provides comment for the Board of SML to consider in finalising its SOI 
(including any modifications suggested by the Committee arising under part 
(iv) above). 

 

Background 

2. The Local Government Act 2002 (LGA) requires the Board of a Council 
Controlled Organisation (CCO) to deliver to its shareholders a draft SOI on 
or before 1 March of each year. 

Discussion 

3. The Board of SML has submitted a draft SOI to Council.  This is attached as 
Appendix 1 to the report.  
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4. The board of a CCO must provide information prescribed by the LGA for the 
SOI, to the extent is appropriate given the organisation form of the CCO.  
They must do this for the ôthe groupõ ð which comprises the CCO and its 
subsidiari es.  The information is required to be provided for the 2019/20 
financial year and the two years following that (section 9, Schedule 8 of the 
LGA).  

5. The compliance of the company with the legislative requirements for the SOI 
and a summary of the amendments proposed by the Board for their 2019-
2022 SOI are detailed below: 

Required Content  SML Draft SOI Content  

(a) the objectives of the company The objectives of SML are stated. 

(b) a statement of the boardõs approach 
to governance of the group 

A comprehensive statement is included. 

(c) the nature and scope of the 
activities undertaken by the group  

The nature and scope of activities are 
outlined.  

(d) the ratio of consolidated 
shareholdersõ funds to total assets, and 
the definition of those terms  

This is provided.  

(e) the accounting policies of the group These are provided. 

(f) the performance targets and other 
measures by which performance of the 
group may be judged in relation to its 
objectives 

Performance measures are included.  

(g) an estimate of the amount or 
proportion of accumulated profits and 
capital reserves that it is intended to be 
distributed to the shareholders  

This is provided.  

The SOI notes that there is an 
expectation of financial returns to 
Council in the medium te rm by way of 
dividends.  

A dividend of $200,000 has been 
provisional provided for in year 3 of the 
SOI.  However a dividend policy has 
not yet been developed and submitted 
by the board for shareholder 
consideration. 

(h) the kind of information to be 
provid ed to the shareholders by the 
group during the course of those 
financial years, including the 
information to be included in each half 
yearly report  

The kind of information to be provided 
is outlined, and includes half yearly 
reports and annual reports.  Financial 
projections are included in the SOI. 

(i) the procedures to be followed 
before any member or the group 
subscribes for, purchases, or otherwise 

Information included. This includes the 
requirement  to obtain the express 
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acquires shares in any company or 
other organisation  

approval of Council.   

(j) any activities for which the board 
seeks compensation from any local 
authority (whether or not the local 
authority has agreed to provide the 
compensation) 

No compensation anticipated.  

(k) the boards estimate of the 
commercial value of the shareholdersõ 
investment in the group and the 
manner in which and the times at 
which that value is to be reassessed 

A statement as to the net value of 
shareholders investment is provided.  

(l) any other matters that are agreed by 
the shareholders and the board 

Environmental targets may need to be 
suggested by Council, as per their òzero 
carbonó resolution.  

 
6. With the exception of climate change and Councilõs carbon zero target, 

officers believe the draft SOI adequately addresses the focus and direction 
and other priority areas requested in the Letter of Expectation sent by 
Council on 11 December 2018.   

Specifically, the draft SOI has considered: 

(a) focusing on completing the remaining in -water developments (as 
market demands and operating cash flows permit);  

(b) financial returns to the shareholder by way of breakwater lease 
payments and in the medium term, dividends;  

(c) continued support of non -profit vent ures connected with the 
Companyõs business;  

(d) the potential impacts of climate change and òcarbon zeroó initiatives, 
and how SML can best respond; and 

(e) Health and Safety. 

7. Council has passed a òcarbon zeroó resolution which included its CCOs.  At 
this stage, the draft SOI makes reference to this but no specific targets or 
objectives have been included.  A new objective should be added and 
included in the final SOI following further discussions with officers and 
direction from members.  Officers recommend working towards more 
specific performance measures in this area. 

8. A provisional dividend of $200,000 has been provided for in 2022/23 (year 3) 
of the draft SOI, following completion of the in -water capital development 
programme in 2021/22 (year 2).  However a formal dividend policy has not 
yet been developed and submitted by the Board for Council consideration.  
Officers will work with the SML Board to develop a dividend policy for 
Council consideration that can then be incorporated into the final S OI. 
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Options / Legal Considerations 

9. Council may suggest changes which the Board must consider in finalising its 
SOI.  The Board must consider within two months of 1 March, any 
comments on the draft SOI that are made by the shareholders.  The Board 
must deliver a completed SOI to Council on or before 30 June 2020. 

10. Outside of this current process, the Council may, by resolution, require the 
Board to modify the SOI and the Board must comply (section 5, Schedule 8 
LGA), provided that Council first consult s the Board. 

Financial Considerations 

11. The draft SOI contains the financial forecasts for SML for the three year 
period commencing 1 July 2020. 

12. The net shareholderõs investment in SML is estimated to be valued at $9.4M 
as at 20 June 2021. 

13. SMLõs planned activities for the period covered by its draft SOI, are funded 
via retained earnings, operating cash flows, and an approved $3.5M ($2.7M 
drawn down), loan agreement with Council.  Council loan(s) to SML are 
funded by Council through borrowings resu lting in nil impact to Council net 
debt. 

14. The draft SOI is forecasting a loan funding requirement of $3.9M in 2021/22 
(year 2) to complete the in-water development and other planned capital 
projects, with $0.9M being repaid in 2022/23 (year 3) resulting  in borrowings 
of $3.0M (22.0% gearing) at the end of the three year period covered by the 
SOI.  As the forecasted loan funding requirement exceeds the existing loan 
facility maximum amount, the later will need to be increased or Council 
agrees to an additional short term funding facility.  Given SMLõs strong 
operating cash flows and very low gearing, SML can easily accommodate the 
required increase in debt funding.  Should Council not agree to an increase 
in funding, completion of the in -water development,  and the associated 
incremental revenue, will need to be pushed out a year.  

15. Consideration should also be given to increasing SMLõs gearing which 
would allow for a higher level of dividend to be returned to Council in the 
short to medium term.  
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1. Mission  

{ŜŀǾƛŜǿ aŀǊƛƴŀ [ƛƳƛǘŜŘΩǎ Ƴƛǎǎƛƻƴ ƛǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ǘƘŜ ŎŜƴǘǊŜ ŦƻǊ ǊŜŎǊŜŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ƳŀǊƛƴŜ 

activities and services in the Wellington Region. 

2. Nature and Scope of Activities  

Seaview Marina Limited (the Company) is responsible for the operation of the 

boating facilities and services, the maintenance of infrastructural assets and the 

development of additional facilities and services as demand dictates. 

3. Corporate Governance Statement  

The Company is 100% owned by Hutt City Council and accordingly is a Council 

Controlled Trading Organisation (CCTO) as defined by the Local Government Act 

нллн ό[D!ύΦ ¢ƘŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ǊƻƭŜ ƛǎ ŘŜŦƛƴŜd in Section 58 of the LGA which requires 

that all decisions relating to the operation of a CCTO shall be made pursuant to the 

authority of the directorate of the CCTO and its Statement of Intent (SOI). In addition 

to the obligations of the LGA, the Company is also covered by the Companies Act 

1993 which places other obligations on the Directors. 

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the SOI which, along with the 

three-ȅŜŀǊ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǇƭŀƴΣ ƛǎ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊΣ Iǳǘǘ /ƛǘȅ 

Council.  Six monthly and Annual reports of financial and operational performance 

are provided to the Shareholder.  Financial and operational /management reports 

are prepared monthly for the Directors. 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the overall control of the Company 

but no cost-effective internal control system will permanently preclude all errors or 

irregularities.  The control systems operating within the Company reflect the specific 

risks associated with the business of the company. 

4. Corporate Goals 

The principle goal of the Company is to operate as a successful business, achieving 

the objectives of its shareholder as specified in this Statement of Intent. The specific 

corporate goals of the Company are as follows: 

General 

4.1 To ensure that the Statement of Intent and operating policies for the 

Company are consistent with the operating policies of Hutt City Council. 

4.2 To ensure that the Statement of Intent and operating strategies are adhered 

to. 
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4.3 To keep the Shareholder informed of matters of substance affecting the 

Company. 

4.4 To perform continual reviews of the operating strategies, financial 

performance and service delivery of the Company. 

4.5 ¢ƻ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ƛƴǘƻ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ bŜǿ ½ŜŀƭŀƴŘΩǎ ǇǊŜƳƛŜǊ ƳŀǊƛƴŀ 

businesses.  

4.6 ¢ƻ ŦǳǊǘƘŜǊ ŜȄǇŀƴŘ ŀƴŘ ŘƛǾŜǊǎƛŦȅ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƳŀǊƛƴŀ ŦŀŎƛƭƛǘƛŜǎΦ  

Economic 

4.7 To maximise the financial returns achieved and the value added by the 

Company. 

4.8 To return a minimum of 5% return on equity (ROE) per annum. 

4.9 ¢ƻ Ƴŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ Ŧƛƴŀncial strength through sound and innovative 

financial management. 

Social and Environmental 

4.10 To support recreational boating activities in the Wellington Region. 

4.11 To promote safe work practices.  

4.12 To act as a socially responsible and environmentally aware corporate citizen 

ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘŜ ǘƻΣ ƻǊ ŀǎǎƛǎǘ ǿƘŜǊŜ ǇƻǎǎƛōƭŜΣ ǿƛǘƘ Iǳǘǘ /ƛǘȅ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ 

community outcomes (as listed in the HCC Annual or Long Term Plan). 

5. Specific Objectives for the Year Ending 30 June 2021  

In pursuit of its corporate goals, the Company has the following objectives for the 

next 12 months: 

General 

5.1 To review the Statements of Intent and Strategic Plans for consistency with 

the objectives of Hutt City Council. 

5.2 To review the operating activities of the Company for compliance with the 

goals and objectives stated in the Statement of Intent and Strategic Plan. 

5.3 To report all matters of substance to the Shareholder. 

Economic 

5.4 To achieve all financial projections. 

5.5 To achieve or exceed a 5% Return on Equity (ROE). 

5.6 To ensure that the reporting requirements of the Company and the 

Shareholder are met. 

Social and Environmental 
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5.7 To maintain good employer status by: 

(a) complying with all employment legislation; 

(b) operating open and non-discriminatory employment practices. 

5.8 To ensure no transgression of environmental and resource laws. 

5.9 To review the activities undertaken by the Company for the purposes of 

being a good socially and environmentally responsible corporate citizen. 

 

6. Shareholder  Expectations  

The Shareholder has provided the Company with its expectations for the business 

over the next three years. These expectations are laid out under the following four 

categories: development, return to shareholder, social and environmental and lastly 

health and safety. The details are outlined below: 

Continue with development plans 

Focus on completing the remaining in-water development as the market demands 

and operating cash flows permit. Any substantial variations will require engagement 

with the Shareholder. 

Returns to Shareholder 

In the medium term the Shareholder expects financial returns by way of dividends 

and breakwater lease payments. Breakwater lease payments commenced in 

2019/20.  The timing of dividend payments is dependent on completion of the in-

water development programme.  The Board will develop a Dividend Policy for 

consideration and approval of the shareholder. 

Social and environmental  

Support of charitable non-ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ǾŜƴǘǳǊŜǎ ŎƻƴƴŜŎǘŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ōǳǎiness 

will continue to be a focus. 

The Company will take steps to respond to the potential impacts of climate change 

ŀƴŘ ŀƭƛƎƴ ƛǘǎŜƭŦ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ΨŎŀǊōƻƴ ȊŜǊƻΩ ƛƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜǎΦ 

Health and safety 

Health and safety will continue to be a top priority and embedded within all activities 

of the marina. 
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7. Performance Measures  

 Key Performance 
Indicator 

2020/ 21 2021/22 2022/23 
 

Reporting 
Frequency 

 Financial   
1 Deliver annual budgeted 

incomes for each of the 
four business entities  

¶ Boat storage 

¶ Hardstand 

¶ Marine Centre 

¶ Launching ramp 
 

Achieve 100% of 
budgeted 
incomes  

Achieve 100% of 
budgeted 
incomes  

Achieve 100% of 
budgeted 
incomes  

Six monthly 

2 Control operational 
expenses (1) 

Operational 
expenses within 
budget 

Operational 
expenses within 
budget 

Operational 
expenses within 
budget 

Annually 

3 Achieve prescribed return 
on investment (2) 

4.8% 4.9% 5.3% Annually 

4 Manage Capital 
Expenditure (3) 

Complete within 
capital budget 
and on time 

Complete within 
capital budget 
and on time 

Complete within 
capital budget 
and on time 

Annually 

 Relationship & Communication   
5 Client Service 88% satisfaction 

in the bi-annual 
survey 

88% satisfaction  
for the exit/entry 
survey 

88% satisfaction 
 in the bi-annual 
survey 

Annually 

6 Newsletter 
communications 

Complete four 
newsletters per 
annum 

Complete four 
newsletters per 
annum 

Complete four 
newsletters per 
annum 

Quarterly 

7 Meet all shareholder 
reporting deadlines 

See Section 9 See Section 9 See Section 9 Schedule in 
Section 9 

 Risk Management and Human Resources   
8 Notifiable health and 

safety incidents 
None None None Monthly to 

board 

9 Business Continuity Plan  Run one test 
scenario and 
review 

Run one test 
scenario and 
review 

Run one test 
scenario and 
review 

Annually 

10 Staff Satisfaction Achieve 85% staff 
satisfaction  

Achieve 85% 
staff satisfaction 

Achieve 85% staff 
satisfaction 

Six Monthly 

 Marketing    
11 Implement marketing 

strategy to improve 
occupancy rates 
(additional berth 
development initially 
impacts negatively on 
berth occupancy rates) 

Berth occupancy 
to 85% 

Berth occupancy 
to 88% 

Berth occupancy 
to 90% 

Monthly 

12 Media and Public Relations 20 enquiries per 
month from 
website 

25 enquiries per 
month from 
website 

30 enquiries per 
month from 
website 

Monthly 

Notes to Financial Measures 

(1) Operational expenses are defined as all expenses controllable by Seaview Management.  Excludes depreciation and 

finance charges 

(2) Return on equity is defined as net Surplus / (Deficit) divided by the opening balance of equity at the start of the year 

(3) Excludes carry forward of expenses on projects from prior years, unless specifically budgeted for (e.g. where project spans 

two or more fiscal periods) 

  



Attachment 1  Appendix  1 SML DRAFT Statement of Intent 2021 -2023 

 

 

DEM15-4-2 - 20/11 - Seaview Marina Limited Draft  Statement of Intent 2020/21 to 2022/23 Page  38 
 

8. Financial Projections  

The projections have been prepared using a number of assumptions about the 

future as well as business trends over the previous five years.  In determining these 

projections the Board and Management have applied their judgement to the future 

commercial environment in which the Company operates. 

 

Capital Expenditure Projections 

 

Note 1:  Ownership of infrastructural assets is retained by the Shareholder (or other clients).   

Note 2:  Seaview Marina has to date returned all financial benefits to its Shareholder through increasing the 

capital value of the marina with trading profits being retained and invested in the strategic development 

programme.  Dividends are expected to be returned to the Shareholder after completion of the marina in-water 

capital development programme. 

  

Financial Year Ended 30 June

Forecast 

2019/20   2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Total revenue 2,460,050 2,683,798 2,771,188 2,884,030

Total expenses 2,045,892 2,237,539 2,292,319 2,335,217

Net (Surplus) / Deficit 414,158 446,259 478,869 548,813

Total assets 13,055,063 13,433,99514,345,39714,020,734

Total liabilities -3,704,689 -3,637,361-4,069,894-3,196,418

Total equity 9,350,374 9,796,63310,275,50310,824,316

Return on equity 4.6% 4.8% 4.9% 5.3%

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Financial Year Ended 30 June Budget Plan Plan

Jetski Pontoons 30,000

Additional Office Space 400,000

Pier Upgrade 25,000

Ramp Tarseal 90,000 90,000

Miscellaneous 80,000 250,000 250,000

H and I Pier 1,000,000

Catamaran Trailer / Haulout 400,000

Total capital programme 1,025,000 1,340,000 250,000
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Prospective Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses 

 

Note:  The breakwater lease of $100,000 a year is a new charge introduced in the 2019/20 financial year.   

  

Forecast 

2019/20   2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Net diesel sales 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000

Tenancy revenue 312,150 322,973 326,651 326,651

Electricity recharges 14,000 55,960 55,960 55,960

Finance revenue 2,900 0 0 0

Ramp revenue 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000

Boat storage revenue 1,763,000 1,910,987 1,985,595 2,094,375

Hardstand revenue 230,000 247,500 251,500 251,500

Liveaboard revenue 80,000 88,379 93,483 97,545

Other revenue 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000

(Gain) / Loss on sale of assets 0 0 0 0

Total revenue 2,460,050 2,683,798 2,771,188 2,884,030

Personnel expenses 505,000 510,102 522,030 534,351

Maintenance 63,000 66,500 68,163 69,867

Electricity EMO expenses 0 5,596 5,596 5,596

Electricity charges 90,000 108,785 111,504 114,292

Insurance 176,000 184,500 189,113 193,840

Security 122,000 122,742 122,742 122,742

Operational contracts 20,854 21,164 21,693 22,236

Environmental services 110,000 111,055 113,831 116,677

Rates and water charges 104,000 112,377 115,187 118,067

Promotion and publicity 15,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

Travel 2,021 5,000 5,000 5,000

Business cases and research 5,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

Breakwater rental 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

(Gain) / Loss on sale of assets 6,528 0 0 0

Other expenses 180,000 211,607 212,773 213,968

Finance expenses 99,914 128,330 117,375 101,078

Total expenses 1,599,318 1,762,758 1,780,006 1,792,712

Net Surplus / (Deficit) before Depreciation 860,732 921,040 991,182 1,091,318

Depreciation 446,574 474,781 512,313 542,505

Net Surplus / (Deficit) after Depreciation 414,158 446,259 478,869 548,813
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Prospective Statement of Movements in Equity 

 

  

For the Year Ended 30 June

Forecast 

2019/20   2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Balance at 1 July 8,936,216 9,350,374 9,796,633 10,275,503

Net (Surplus) / Deficit after Depreciation 414,158 446,259 478,869 548,813

Dividend payment to HCC -200,000

Balance at 30 June 9,350,374 9,796,633 10,275,503 10,624,316
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Prospective Statement of Financial Position 

 

  

Forecast 

2019/20   2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Cash and cash equivalants 505,429 336,653 413,507 187,497

Debtors and other receivables 40,672 46,344 48,877 50,401

Prepayments 0 0 0 0

Inventory 25,920 17,736 22,064 14,393

Advances related parties 0 0 0 0

Total Current Assets 572,021 400,733 484,448 252,291

Assets under construction 0 0 0 0

Fixed assets at cost 16,202,99817,227,998 18,567,998 18,817,998

Accumulated depreciation -3,719,955 -4,194,736 -4,707,049 -5,249,554

Total Non Current Assets 12,483,04213,033,261 13,860,949 13,568,444

Total Assets 13,055,06313,433,995 14,345,397 13,820,734

Payables and accruals 106,071 33,071 63,071 88,071

Receipts in advance 65,504 71,176 73,709 75,233

Employee entitlements 33,115 33,115 33,115 33,115

Advances related parties 0 0 0 0

Total Current Liabilities 204,689 137,361 169,894 196,418

Borrowings 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,900,000 3,000,000

Total Non Current Liabilities 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,900,000 3,000,000

Total Liabilities 3,704,689 3,637,361 4,069,894 3,196,418

Net Assets 9,350,374 9,796,633 10,275,503 10,624,316

Accumulated funds -14,698,529-14,284,371-13,838,112-13,359,242

Net (Suplus) / Deficit 414,158 446,259 478,869 548,813

Dividend payable to Hutt City 0 0 0 -200,000

Share capital 21,281,90321,281,903 21,281,903 21,281,903

Revaluation reserve 2,352,842 2,352,842 2,352,842 2,352,842

Total Equity 9,350,374 9,796,633 10,275,503 10,624,316
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Prospective Statement of Cash Flows 

  

Prospective Statement of Cash Flows

For Year Ended 30 June:
Forecast 

2019/20   2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Cashflows from Operating Activities

Cash was provided from:

Receipts from rentals 2,305,150 2,481,460 2,563,746 2,672,526

Interest received 2,900 0 0 0

Receipts from user chrges and other revenue166,557 202,339 207,443 211,505

Cash was applied to:

Payments to employees -498,406 -510,102 -522,030 -534,351

Payments to suppliers -1,006,688 -1,189,142 -1,114,929 -1,124,612

Dividend payments -200,000

Interest paid -99,914 -128,330 -117,375 -101,078

Tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities 869,598 856,224 1,016,854 923,990

Cashflows from Investing Activities

Cash was provided from:

Asset sales

Cash was applied to:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment-1,801,877 -1,025,000 -1,340,000 -250,000

Purchase of assets under construction 0 0 0 0

Net cash flows from investing activities -1,801,877 -1,025,000 -1,340,000 -250,000

Cashflows from Financial Activities

Cash was provided from:

Borrowings from Hutt City Council 800,000 0 400,000 0

Cash was applied to:

Repayment of borrowings to Hutt City Council-18,721 0 0 -900,000

Net cash flows from financing activities 781,279 0 400,000 -900,000

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash -151,000 -168,776 76,854 -226,010

Cash at beginning of year 656,429 505,429 336,653 413,507

Cash at end of year 505,429 336,653 413,507 187,497
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9ǉǳƛǘȅ ±ŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ 

¢ƘŜ ŜǎǘƛƳŀǘŜŘ ƴŜǘ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŀǘ ол WǳƴŜ 

2020 will be $9.4M and $9.8M on 30 June 21. 

Ratio of Shareholders Funds to Total Assets 

The target ratio for consolidated shareholders' funds to total assets is at least 50%.  

Consolidated shareholders' funds comprise share capital and accumulated reserves.  

Total assets comprise all tangible assets of the Company, the main component being 

the marina berths, infrastructure and the Wellington Marine Centre building. 

 

  

As at 30 June

Forecast 

2019/20   2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Equity / Total Assets (%) 72% 73% 72% 77%
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9. Accumulated Profits and Capital Reserves  

The intention is to pay a dividend to the Shareholder commencing in 2022/23.  The 

Company will develop a Dividend Policy during 2019/20. 

10. Share Acquisition  

There is no intention to subscribe for shares in any other company or invest in any 

other organisation during the period covered by this Statement of Intent.  Not with 

standing this, the purchase of any shares requires shareholder approval. 

11. Information to be Provided to Shareholders  

In each year the Company shall comply with the reporting requirements under the 

Local Government Act 2002, the Companies Act 1993, and other relevant 

regulations.  In particular the Company will provide: 

11.1 Statement of Intent  

A draft Statement of Intent by 1 March of the year preceding the financial 

year to which it relates detailing all matters required under the Local 

Government Act 2002, including financial information for the next three 

years. 

A final Statement of Intent before the commencement of the financial year to 

which it relates. 

11.2 Half-Yearly Report 

Within two months after the end of the first half of each financial year, the 

Company shall provide a report on the operation of SML to enable an 

informed assessment of its performance, including financial statements, and 

progress on activities and projects (in accordance with section 66 of the LGA 

2002). 

11.3 Annual Report 

Within three months after the end of each financial year, the Company will 

provide an annual report which provides a comparison of its performance 

with the Statement of Intent, with an explanation of any material variances, 

audited consolidated Financial Statements for that financial year, and an 

!ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘ όƛƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘance with section 67, 68 and 69 of the LGA 2002). 
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12. Pricing Policy  

The Company operates in a competitive market competing with four other marinas 

within the Wellington Region and to a lesser extent with the Marlborough marinas. 

All marina charges, apart from the Wellington Marine Centre Leases, are reviewed 

on an annual basis. The review is based on a number of criteria which are listed 

below: 

11.1 Market Trends 

The Company positions it charges at the lower end of the Wellington marina 

market but will adjust charges according to movements in other marinas of a 

similar standard. 

11.2 Operating Costs 

Increases in operating costs related to the marina activities compared with 

the previous year (not CPI). 

11.3 Achievement of Return on Equity (ROE) 

Hutt City Council has set a 5% ROE which the Company is expected to achieve 

in the medium term and rental charges are set accordingly to achieve this. 

13. Transactions with Related Parties  

Transactions between the Company, Lower Hutt City Council and other Hutt City 
Council controlled enterprises will be conducted on a wholly commercial basis. 
Charges from Hutt City Council and its other companies will be made for services 
provided as part of the normal trading activities of the Company. 

Related Party Transaction 

Hutt City Council Finance Department Provision of accounting services and the 

ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 

financial accounts into the Hutt City 

/ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘǎΦ 

Hutt City Council IT Department Provision of technical support for the 

/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŎƻƳǇǳǘŜǊ Ƙŀrdware and 

systems. 
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14. Directory  

Directors 

Brian Walshe (Chairman) 
Chris Milne 
Peter Steel 

Chief Executive 

Alan McLellan 

Registered Office 

100 Port Road 
Seaview 
Lower Hutt 
New Zealand 

Postal Address 

Private Bag 33 230 
Petone 5012 

Telephone 

+64 (4) 568 3736 

Website 

www.seaviewmairna.co.nz 

Auditor 

Audit New Zealand on behalf of the Auditor General 

Bankers 

Westpac Banking Corporation of New Zealand Limited 
Lower Hutt  
New Zealand 

Solicitors 

Thomas Dewar Sziranyi Letts 
Level 2, Corner Queens Drive & Margaret Street 
Lower Hutt 
New Zealand 

  

http://www.seaviewmairna.co.nz/
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15. Accounting Policies  

REPORTING ENTITY  

Seaview Marina Limited (SML) is a Council Controlled Trading Organisation (CCTO), 100 per cent owned by 

Hutt City Council.  The primary objective of SML is the operation of a marina which benefits the community of 

Hutt City.  SML is designated a public benefit entity for financial reporting purposes. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, and the accounting policies have 

been applied consistently throughout the period. 

Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government 

Act 2002, which includes the requirement to comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New 

Zealand (NZ GAAP).  They comply with IPSAS and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as 

appropriate for publiŎ ōŜƴŜŦƛǘ ŜƴǘƛǘƛŜǎ όt.9ύ ǘƘŀǘ ŀǇǇƭȅ ¢ƛŜǊ н t.9 ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎΦ  !ǎ {a[Ωǎ ǘƻǘŀƭ 

expenses are under $30,000,000, it has elected to apply Tier 2 PBE accounting standards.  

Measurement base 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial 

statements. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. 

Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values have been rounded to the 

nearest dollar.  The functional currency of SML is New Zealand dollars.   

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 

Revenue 

SML derives revenue from its licensees and casual clients.  The income is generated from a range of rentals for 

boat storage and building tenancies as well as services available through the facilities provided by SML. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received. THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 

transaction at balance date, based on the actual service provided as a percentage of the total services to be 

provided. 

Sales of goods are recognised when a product is sold to the customer.  The recorded revenue is the gross 

amount of the sale, including credit card fees payable for the transaction. Such fees are included in other 

expenses. 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method. 

Expenses 

Expenses are recognised when the goods or services have been received on an accrual basis. 
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Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly 

liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. 

Trade debtors and other receivables 

Trade debtors and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. 

Inventory 

Inventory is recorded at cost on a first in ς first out basis. 

Property, plant and equipment 

All asset classes are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Additions 

Expenditure of a capital nature of $500 or more is capitalised.  Expenditure of less than $500 is charged to 

operating expenditure.  The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and 

only if, it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to 

SML and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Labour costs relating to self-constructed assets are capitalised if, and only if, it is probable that future 

economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to SML and the cost of the item can 

be measured reliably. 

Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated. 

Disposals 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the 

asset. Gains and losses on disposals are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive revenue and expense. 

Subsequent costs 

Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic 

benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to SML and the cost of the item can be 

measured reliably. 

All assets are valued at historical cost, adjusted for accumulated depreciation.   

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment at rates that will write off 

the cost of the assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives.  The straight-line depreciation 

rates are as follows: 

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following asset classes: land, buildings, leasehold improvements, 

furniture and office equipment and motor vehicles. 

Estimated economic lives Years Rate 

Buildings  
Service Centre, hardstand, travel lift  

5 - 33 
2 - 77 

3% - 20% 
1.3% - 50% 
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Site improvements 3 - 60 1.7% - 33.3% 

Piers and marina berths 4 - 30 3.3% - 25% 

Plant and equipment 1.5 - 66 1.5% - 67% 

Vehicles 5 20% 

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed and adjusted if applicable at each financial year end. 

Intangible assets 

Software acquisition and development 

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to 

use the specific software.  Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense 

when incurred.  Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use by SML, 

are recognised as an intangible asset. 

Amortisation 

The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life.  

Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised.  

The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive revenue and 

expense. 

The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated as 

follows: 

Estimated economic lives Years Rate 

Computer software  2.5 - 33 3% - 40% 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets with a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If ŀƴ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ŜȄŎŜŜŘǎ ƛǘǎ 

recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is written down to the recoverable 

ŀƳƻǳƴǘΦ   ¢ƘŜ ǊŜŎƻǾŜǊŀōƭŜ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ƘƛƎƘŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƭŜǎǎ Ŏƻǎǘǎ ǘƻ ǎŜƭƭ ŀƴŘ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƛƴ ǳǎŜΦ  ¢ƘŜ 

total impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive revenue and expense. 

Goods and services Tax 

All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables, which are 

presented on a GST inclusive basis.  Where GST is not recoverable as input tax then it is recognised as part of 

the related asset or expense. 

Employee entitlements  

Short-term entitlements 

Employee benefits that SML expects to be settled within 12 months of balance date are measured at nominal 

values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.  These include salaries and wages accrued up to 

balance date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at balance date, retiring and long service leave 

entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months, and sick leave. 

SML recognises a liability for sick leave to the extent that absences in the coming year are expected to be 

greater than the sick leave entitlements earned in the coming year.  The amount is calculated based on the 
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unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance date, to the extent that SML anticipates it 

will be used by staff to cover those future absences.   

SML recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses where contractually obliged or where there is a past 

practice that has created a constructive obligation. 

Payables 

Short term creditors and other payables are recorded at their face value. 

Provisions 

SML recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a present 

obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that expenditures will be 

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 

obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised 

as an interest expense. 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value plus transaction costs. After initial recognition, all 

borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  Borrowings are classified as 

current liabilities unless SML has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 

months after balance date. 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Income tax 

Income tax expense includes components relating to both current tax and deferred tax. 

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable based on the taxable profit for the current year, and any 

adjustments to income tax payable in respect of prior years.  Current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax 

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at balance date 

Deferred tax is the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in future periods in respect of temporary 

differences and unused tax losses.  Temporary differences are differences between the carrying amount of 

assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 

taxable profit.  

Deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset is realised or the liability is 

settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at balance date.  The 

measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 

entity expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.  

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.  Deferred tax assets are 

recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible 

temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.  
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Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or 

from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the 

time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised against the surplus or deficit for the period, except to the extent that it 

relates to a business combination, or to transactions recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense 

or directly in equity. 

Leases 

Operating leases 

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of an asset.  Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term. 

Finance leases 

SML has not entered into any material finance leases. 

Financial instruments 

The Company is party to financial instrument arrangements as part of its normal operation.  Revenue and 

expenses in relation to all financial instruments are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue 

and Expenses. 

!ƭƭ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƛƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ tƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀǎƛǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 

accounting policies.  All financial instruments disclosed on the Statement of Financial Position are recorded at 

fair value.  

Budget figures 

The budget figures are those approved by the Board at the beginning of the year.  The budget figures have 

been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice (GAAP), using accounting policies 

that are consistent with those adopted by the Board for the preparation of the financial statements. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 

In preparing these financial statements SML has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future.  

These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results.  Estimates and assumptions 

are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the reporting period in which the revision is made and in any future periods that 

will be affected by those provisions.   

Assumptions have been made for the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as 

noted above. 
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Policy, Finance and Strategy 
Committee  

10 January 2020 

 
 
 

File: (20/12) 

 
 

 
 
Report no: PFSC2020/2/41 

 

Urban Plus Group Draft Statement of Intent 
2020/21 to 2022/23  

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of the report is to provide a review of the draft 2020-2023 
Statement of Intent (SOI) for Urban Plus Group (UPL)  as delivered to 
Council for Councilõs consideration. 

Recommendations 

That the Committee recommends that Council: 

(i) notes that the Urban Plus Group (UPL) Board has submitted a draft Statement 
of Intent (SOI) 2020/21 - 2022/23, attached as Appendix 1 to the report, in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 2002; 

(ii)  notes that officers have reviewed the draft SOI for compliance with the Local 
Government Act 2002 and provided their analysis;  

(iii)  receives the draft SOI; 

(iv)  reviews the draft SOI and considers if any modifications should be made; and  

(v) provides comment for the UPL Board to consider in finalising its SOI 
(including any modifications suggested by the Committee arising under 
recommendation (iv) above). 

 

Background 

2. The Local Government Act 2002 (LGA) requires the board of a Council 
Controlled Organisation (CCO) to deliver to its shareholders a draft SOI on 
or before 1 March of each year. 

Discussion 

3. The Board of UPL has submitted a draft SOI to Council.  This is attached as 
Appendix 1 to the report.  
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4. The board of a CCO must provide inf ormation prescribed by the LGA for the 
SOI, to the extent is appropriate given the organisation form of the CCO.  
They must do this for the ôthe groupõ ð which comprises the CCO and its 
subsidiaries.  The information is required to be provided for the 2020 /21 
financial year and the two years following that (section 9, Schedule 8 of the 
LGA).   

5. The compliance of the company with the legislative requirements for the SOI 
and a summary of the amendments proposed by the Board for their 2020-
2023 SOI are detailed below: 

Required Content  UPL Draft SOI Content  

(a) the objectives of the company The objectives of UPL are stated. 

(b) a statement of the boardõs approach 
to governance of the group 

A statement is included.  

(c) the nature and scope of the 
activities undertaken by the group  

The nature and scope of activities are 
outlined ð no significant changes. 

(d) the ratio of consolidated 
shareholdersõ funds to total assets, and 
the definition of those terms  

Ratio provided.  

(e) the accounting policies of the group  Accounting policies are outlined.  

(f) the performance targets and other 
measures by which performance of the 
group may be judged in relation to its 
objectives 

Performance targets are included.   

(g) an estimate of the amount or 
proportion of accumu lated profits and 
capital reserves that is intended to be 
distributed to the shareholders  

Information provided.   

(h) the kind of information to be 
provided to the shareholders by the 
group during the course of those 
financial years, including the 
inform ation to be included in each half 

yearly report (and, in particular, what 

prospective financial information is 
required and how it is to be presented)  

The kind of information to be provided 
is outlined.    

(i) the procedures to be followed 
before any member or the group 
subscribes for, purchases, or otherwise 
acquires shares in any company or 
other organisation  

Information on procedures is not 
provided but it is noted that there is no 
intention to subscribe or invest in any 
other organisation.  A further n ote 
states UPL has established a subsidiary.  
Established procedures are in place 
which require approval from the CEO 
of Council, who can grant authority to 
UPL on certain conditions.  
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(j) any activities for which the board 
seeks compensation from any local 
authority (whether or not the local 
authority has agreed to provide the 
compensation) 

No compensation requested. 

(k) the boards estimate of the 
commercial value of the shareholdersõ 
investment in the group and the 
manner in which and the times at 
which that value is to be reassessed 

A statement as to the net value of 
shareholderõs investment is provided. 

(l) any other matters that are agreed by 
the shareholders and the board 

Some additional information is 
provided.  

 
6. The draft SOI has been prepared to address the priorities included in the 

Letter of Expectation it received from Council on 11 December 2018, ie., it is 
consistent with the 2019-2021 SOI, however the UPL Board is aware that 
potential changes in UPLõs strategic direction continue to be considered by 
Council which may require significant changes to the draft SOI.  

7. Officers advised last year that the long held target date for UPL to achieve 
220 rental units would not be achieved.  The original target date was 30 June 
2020, but the target date was reset in the 2019-2021 SOI to 31 December 2021.  
This target remains unchanged in the draft 2020-2022 SOI and is based on 
UPLõs current four year development programme. 

8. It should be noted that from the time the cu rrent UPL strategy and target 
was set in 2018, through to when the target is now expected to be met, UPL 
will have developed and sold to the private market, 105 houses, the profits 
from which will have funded the growth in UPLõs rental portfolio without 
requiring ratepayer assistance.  UPL will have contributed 139 houses net 
(rentals, and developed then sold), to Councils Urban Growth Strategy 
target. 

9. The financial forecasts in the draft SOI, the projected number of rental units, 
and the number of houses developed and sold to the market over the period 
covered by the SOI, are based on UPLõs current four year development 
programme.  

Specifically, over the term covered by the SOI, UPL will complete the 
following òsold outó commercial developments: 

(a) Central Park on Copeland ð 34 x two and three bedroom town houses 

(b) The Lane, Waterloo (Bauchop Road) ð 27 x two and three bedroom town 
houses. 

To grow the rental portfolio, UPL plans to complete the following 
developments: 

(c) Molesworth Street ð 18 x single bedroom units  

(d) 17 Britannia Street ð 10 x single bedsits 

(e) Unknown future development ð 20 x one and two bedroom units. 
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10. Until a decision has been made by the UPL Board on its Jackson Street site to 
either develop apartments to sell to the market or to a Community Housing 
Provider (CHP), or to build further units to be added to UPLõs rental 
portfolio, or to sell the site as is where is, this development opportunity has 
been excluded from UPLõs financial forecasts (other than the land and 
current site improvements remaining part of UPLõs asset base). 

11. Officerõs note, the 20 x rental units noted in 9(e) above, could be part of an 
apartment development on the Jackson Street site, or an as yet unknown site 
that is purchased by UPL. 

Legal Considerations 

12. Council may suggest changes which the Board must consider in finalising its 
SOI.  The Board must consider within two months of 1 March any comments 
on the draft SOI that are made by the shareholders.  The Board must deliver 
a completed SOI to Council on or before 30 June 2020. 

13. Outside of this current process, the Council may, by resolution, require the 
Board to modify the SOI and the Board must comply (section 5, Schedule 8 
LGA), provided that Council first consults the Board.  

Financial Considerations 

14. The draft SOI contains the financial forecasts for UPL for the three year 
period commencing 1 July 2020. 

15. The Total Equity of UPL is estimated to be $43.1M at 30 June 2021. 

Appendices 

No. Title  Page 

1ᶓ  Appendix 1 UPL Group Draft Statement of Intent 2019-2022 56 

2ᶓ  Appendix 2 2018 UPL Letter of Expectation 81 
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Purpose 

The purpose of this statement of intent is to: 

a. State publicly the activities and intentions of this council-controlled organisation for the year and the 
objectives to which those activities will contribute; 

b. Provide an opportunity for shareholders to influence the direction of the organisation; and 

c. Provide a basis for the accountability of the directors to their shareholders for the performance of the 
organisation.  

This Statement of Intent covers the year 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 and forecasts for the following two 
financial years.  It has been prepared in accordance with Section 64 (1) of the Local Government Act 2002. 

Introduction  

Urban Plus Limited (UPL) is wholly owned by Hutt City Council (HCC) and operates as a Council Controlled 
Organisation (CCO) under the Local Government Act 2002.  UPL was established effective 1 May 2007 with 
ǇǊƛƴŎƛǇƭŜ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎ ŀǎ ǎǘŀǘŜŘ ōŜƭƻǿ ǳƴŘŜǊ ΨhǳǊ .ǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ hōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎΩΦ   

UPL is a company registered under the Companies Act 1993 and is governed by the requirements of that Act 
and Section 6 of the Local Government Act 2002, and is covered by law and best practice.  It also has 
responsibilities under the general law including the Resource Management Act 1991. 

The Urban Plus Group comprises Urban Plus Limited (UPL), UPL Limited Partnership (UPLLP) and UPL 
Developments Limited (UPLDL). 

Urban Plus Contributions to Council and Community 
Outcomes  

Desirable outcomes expressed by Hutt City Council ŀǊŜ ƴǳƳōŜǊŜŘ ōŜƭƻǿ ǿƛǘƘ ¦t[Ωǎ ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘΥ  
 
1.  A safe community  
 ¢ƘŜ ¦t[ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻ ƻŦ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘƛŀƭ ƘƻǳǎƛƴƎ ƛǎ ǇǊŜŘƻƳƛƴŀƴǘƭȅ ƻŎŎǳǇƛŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘƻǎŜ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊŜŘ ǘƻ ōŜ ǘƘŜ Ψƭƻǿ-

ƛƴŎƻƳŜ ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅΩΦ  ²Ŝ ŦŜŜƭ ǘƘŀǘ ŀƴ ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅ ǇǊŜǎŜƴŎŜ ƛƴ ŀƴȅ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘŜǎ ǘƻ ŀ ǎŀŦŜǊ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ 
by having people present in residential areas during the working day.  This passive security presence 
ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ΨǎǘŀōƛƭƛǘȅΩ ŀƴŘ ǾŀƭǳŜ ǘƻ ŀ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ ōȅ ƘŀǾƛƴƎ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŀǊŜŀ ǿƘƛƭŜ ǘƘƻǎŜ ƻŦ ȅƻǳƴƎŜǊ ŀƎŜ 
may be at work or school.   

 
2.  A strong and diverse economy  
 Providing appropriate accommodation for our elderly where they can retain independent living with 

dignity contributes significantly to community diversity by retaining the elderly in that community. 
 
3.  An accessible and connected city. 
 The elderly can contribute significantly to the community and families by being actively involved in the 

community.  This connectivity with the community spans generations and encourages understanding 
and tolerance between young and old.  

 
4.  Healthy people 
 UPL has a significant role in providing warmer, drier, healthier homes to the low-income elderly who 

may not be in a position to self-ŦǳƴŘ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ ŀŎŎƻƳƳƻŘŀǘƛƻƴΦ  ¢Ƙƛǎ ǊƻƭŜΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
ƛƴŦƭǳŜƴŎŜ ƛǎ ŜȄǇŀƴŘƛƴƎ ŀǎ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎƛƴƎ ƴǳƳōŜǊǎ ƻŦ Ψōŀōȅ-ōƻƻƳŜǊǎΩ ǊŜǘƛǊŜΦ  ¢ƘŜ ŦƻǊŜŎŀǎǘ ƛǎ ŦƻǊ ǎǘŜŀŘƛƭȅ 
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growing numbeǊǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƻǾŜǊ срΩǎ ŜƴǘŜǊƛƴƎ ǘƘƛǎ ǎŜŎǘƻǊ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǇǳƭŀǘƛƻƴ ŀƎŜǎΦ  ¢ƘŜ ŎƘŀƴƎƛƴƎ [ƻǿŜǊ 
Hutt demographic will put increased pressure on UPL to provide an increased number of housing units 
in the future.  UPL has a significant role to play in appropriately housing this growing and aging 
demographic. 

 
5.  A healthy natural environment  
 UPL aims to be a good community citizen in the widest sense taking responsibility for project 

management, material selection and disposal in a way that minimises harm and impact on the 
environment.  We endeavour to apply best practise in terms of passive design (insulation, double 
glazing and where possible, positioning for solar gain) to minimise energy consumption promoting the 
concept of warmer, drier healthier homes at minimal ongoing cost to the occupier. 

 
6.  Actively engaged in community activities 
 The provision of residential housing aimed at the low-income elderly is a community activity where we 

are using our skills, expertise and professionalism to assist those elderly that are in need of assistance 
in finding appropriate accommodation. 

 
7.  Strong and inclusive communities 
 Prior to embarking on any development, UPL considers the overall amenity value of the community 

including proximity to public transport, retail, medical centres, land contour etc. so our residents can 
live safely and in an engaged manner within the community retaining mobility and independence. 

 
8.  A healthy built environment  
 Our developments and management of the existing portfolio contribute to a healthy built environment 

by best practice property maintenance, developments that are sympathetic to community values, and 
are complimentary to desirable urban planning aspirations and planning rules.  New properties are 
insulated, double glazed, warm, dry homes with accessibility issues minimised by passive design.  It is 
recognised that those occupying warmer drier homes are naturally healthier, consume less energy in 
keeping those homes warm, and enjoy reduced doctors / hospital visits with increased longevity. 

 
9.  A well-governed city 
 UPL contributes to good governance by adopting best industry practice in terms of design, project 

ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΣ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ ƳŀƛƴǘŜƴŀƴŎŜΣ ŦƛǎŎŀƭ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭǎΣ ŀƴŘ ōŜƛƴƎ ŀ ΨƎƻƻŘ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ŎƛǘƛȊŜƴΩΦ  ²Ŝ ǎǘǊƛǾŜ ǘƻ 
ΨŘƻ-the-right-thinƎΩ ƛƴ ŀƭƭ ƻǊ ŘŜŀƭƛƴƎǎ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘǳŀƭ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎΦ 

 
10.  Urban Growth Strategy 
 UPL will assist HCC in the Urban Growth Strategy by applying knowledge, experience, expertise and skill 

from within UPL as and when called upon to assist the shareholder wherever possible to invigorate 
growth, development, and property related assistance.   

 

Our Business Objectives 

Section 59 of the Local Government Act 2002 provides: 
 
Principal objective of council-controlled organisation  

(1) The principal objective of a council-controlled organisation is to: 

(a) Achieve the objectives of its shareholders, both commercial and non-commercial, as specified in 
the statement of intent;  

(b) Be a good employer; 

(c) Exhibit a sense of social and environmental responsibility by having regard to the interests of the 
community in which it operates, and by endeavouring to accommodate or encourage these when 
able to do so; and  
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(d) If the Council-controlled organisation is a council-controlled trading organisation, conduct its 
affairs in accordance with sound business practice. 

(2) In subsection 1.b, good employer has the same meaning as in clause 36 of Schedule 7 of the Local 
Government Act 2002.  

In addition to the statutory objective, the objectives of the Company are to: 

1.1 provide for the long term a growing portfolio of rental housing for the low-income elderly
1
 consistent 

ǿƛǘƘΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ƎƛǾŜ ŜŦŦŜŎǘ ǘƻΣ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ƘƻǳǎƛƴƎ ǇƻƭƛŎȅΤ 

1.2 develop the housing portfolio in a manner which increases its property values; 

1.3 ensure that the housing portfolio for the low-income elderly is appropriate for the changing needs of 
ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ ƛƴ ǘŜǊƳǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎ ƻǳǘƭƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ƘƻǳǎƛƴƎ ǇƻƭƛŎȅΤ 

1.4 operate as a successful and profitable undertaking; 

1.5 purchase, develop, lease or sell the development property portfolio in a manner which maximises its 
value at a level of risk appropriate for the investment of funds; 

1.6 comply with all legislative and regulatory provisions relating to its operations and performance; 

1.7 ensure all assets owned by it are maintained to the best applicable standards; 

1.8 maintain an effective business continuance plan; 

1.9 maintain a register of current Council policies relevant to its business and operations; and 

1.10 assist Council when asked to do so in its endeavours in terms of the Urban Growth Strategy. 

These objectives will be monitored and where in conflict, these objectives will be pursued giving greater 
weight to the interests of maximising value to the Shareholders provided that in relation to the provision of 
social housing, value to the shareholders will include the consideration of social value. 
  

  

                                                      
1  Ψ[ƻǿ-ƛƴŎƻƳŜ ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅΩ ƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ ŎƻƴǘŜȄǘ ǊŜƭŀǘŜǎ ǘƻ ŀƴ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀƴǘ ŦƻǊ ŀ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘƛŀƭ ǘŜƴŀƴŎȅΣ ǘƘŀǘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǘƛƳŜ ƻŦ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴΣ ƛǎ ŀōƭŜ ǘo 

demonstrate: 
i. that they are eligible for National Super (aged over 65 years ς this being subject to review periodically by central Government) 
ii. that they have no other income 
iii. that they do not have cash or assets of such a magnitude that would mean they could make independent accommodation 

choices. 
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Nature and Scope of Activities to be undertaken by the 
Company  

The principal objective of the Company is to: 

1. Operate as a successful business, returning benefits to the shareholder; 

2. Own, operate and maintain a portfolio of rental housing to provide community housing for the low-
income elderly in accordance with normal commercial guidelines and the housing policy of  Council; 

3. Ensure that the housing portfolio for the low-income elderly is appropriate for the changing needs of 
ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ ƛƴ ǘŜǊƳǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎ ƻǳǘƭƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ƘƻǳǎƛƴƎ ǇƻƭƛŎȅΤ 

4. Develop property in preparation for sale or lease, which are declared surplus to the needs of Hutt City 
Council and which provide an appropriate return for the costs and risks of development;  

5. Purchase, develop, lease or sell the development property portfolio in a manner which maximises its 
value at a level of risk appropriate for the investment of funds; and 

6. Otherwise become involved in property-related transactions and property-technical advisory services 
on a commercial basis that support the Shareholders' vision for the future development of the city.  
This specifically includes assisting with progressing the Urban Growth Strategic Objectives. 

 
Section 59 of the Local Government Act 2002 also provides that the principal objectives of a council-controlled 
trading organisation include the objectives of its Shareholders. 
 
In order to meet our objectives we focus our work activity on asset planning and development, capital project 
management, operations management, risk management, staff development and corporate governance. 

Other 

UPL will continue to be involved in property-related transactions on a commercial basis that support the 
Shareholders' vision for the future development of the city. 

 
UPL will continue to provide a wide range of strategic property advice and property consultancy when 
required to the Shareholder.  Work has included: 

1. Advice and general direction for Making Places projects; 

2. Commercial leasing management advice for HCC property and subsidiaries; 

3. Specific property advice (example ς Community Facilities Trust ς long-term maintenance planning); 

4. Assist with strategic property acquisition as directed by the Shareholder. 

 

5.   
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Increasing Housing Supply 

Housing Shortage: Greater Demand for Housing than Supply 
 

The past two years has seen a significant increase in housing development in Lower Hutt.  The remissions 
scheme provided by Council to promote infill housing and multi-unit developments has been one reason. Such 
growth however has resulted in a scarcity of available land for future housing developments on the valley 
floor.  However, it is widely acknowledged that demand still continues to grow faster than supply.  
Accordingly, there is an expectation that the Shareholder will release land to meet increasing demand levels in 
all housing typologies in Lower Hutt.   

 

UPL now has the opportunity to focus on areas in the market where demand is not being met with supply by 
other developers. 
 

Release of Council-Owned Land for Development 

 

UPL will work closely with the Shareholder throughout the 2020-21 financial year to assist in reviewing and 
identifying parcels of land that could enable further growth to achieve its Urban Growth targets and address 
the housing shortage currently being experienced in Lower Hutt. 

Funding 

The completion of recent market release developments has positioned the company to put funds towards its 
upcoming social housing projects. Whilst the funds will assist towards progressing these upcoming planned 
projects, thŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŀǎǇƛǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƻ ƎǊƻǿ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻ Ƴŀȅ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜ ŦǳǊǘƘŜǊ ŦǳƴŘƛƴƎΦ  !ǎ ǎǳŎƘΣ ¦t[ Ƴŀȅ ǎŜŜƪ 
alternative funding options such as strategic sell down of some of its existing stock, partnering with third party 
housing providers such as Community Housing Providers in a variety of structures or debt / equity financing.   

 

As a general guide, expected current costs to deliver a single level, one-bedroom unit are approximately 
$320,000 incl GST.  Two-bedroom townhouses suitable for medium density developments are expected to 
cost approximately $450,000 incl GST. These figures include assumed costs for land and all fees associated 
with delivering the projects. 

Homelessness 

Supporting Shareholder Objectives 
 

The Shareholder is developing both its Homelessness Strategy and its Housing Strategy.  UPL remains open 
and responsive to the outcomes of these strategies, and will support the Shareholder to achieve its objectives 
and planned outcomes.  

 

Housing typologies for the Urban Plus Residential Portfolio  
 
HistoriŎŀƭƭȅΣ ¦t[Ωǎ ƳƻŘŜƭ ǿŀǎ ǘƻ ƛƴǘŜƴǎƛŦȅ ǎƛǘŜǎΣ ōƻǘƘ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ƛǘǎ ƻǿƴ ŜȄƛǎǘƛƴƎ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻ ŀƴŘ ƻƴ ƭŀƴŘ ŀŎǉǳƛǊŜŘ Ǿƛŀ 
the market, with single bedroom unit developments.  These generally were c. 40-48m2 in total dwelling size, 
and catered for the majority of our tenant base. 

Future-looking, UPL is looking at providing both one and two bedroom units where amenity value is high, and 
it is financially viable to do so.  This may be either single or two storey layouts. 

As our core tenant is the low income elderly, there is little need to produce a wider variety of housing or 
greater number of bedrooms per dwelling at this stage ς however, if the Shareholder provides a wider 
mandate, UPL will amend its design and specification accordingly. 
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Housing typologies for UPL Limited Partnership Developments 

tǊŜǾƛƻǳǎƭȅΣ ¦t[Ωǎ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ŀ ƳƛȄ ƻŦ ƘƻǳǎƛƴƎ ǘȅǇƻƭƻƎƛŜǎ ŀǘ ƛǘǎ CŀƛǊŦƛŜƭŘ ²ŀǘŜǊǎ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ 
by providing a mix of two and three bedroom 2-storey townhouses as well as three and four bedroom 
standalone homes.  This variety appealed to a wide range of purchasers ς from retirees and downsizers, to 
young professionals and families. 

¦t[[tΩǎ ǎŜŎƻƴŘ ƳŀƧƻǊ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘΣ tŀǊƪǾƛŜǿΣ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ŀ ƳƻǊŜ ƎŜƴŜǊƛŎ ǇǊƻŘǳŎǘ ƻŦ ǘǿŜƴǘȅ ŦƻǳǊ ǎƛƴƎƭŜ ƭŜǾŜƭ 
townhouses with single (internally accessed) garages.  The reasoning was to release a more traditionally 
accepted product to the market in Avalon rather than the multi-unit 2-storey townhouse design. 

¢ƘŜ ƴŜȄǘ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŀǊŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘƭȅ ǳƴŘŜǊ ŎƻƴǎǘǊǳŎǘƛƻƴ ŀǊŜ Ψ/ŜƴǘǊŀƭ tŀǊƪ ƻƴ /ƻǇŜƭŀƴŘΩ ƛƴ 9Ǉǳƴƛ ŀƴŘ Ψ¢ƘŜ 
[ŀƴŜΩ ƛƴ ²ŀǘŜǊƭƻƻΦ  ¢ƘŜ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘǎ ŀǊŜ ǎƛƳƛƭŀǊ ƛƴ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜǊŜ ŀǊŜ ǘǿƻ ŀƴŘ ǘƘǊŜŜ ōŜŘǊƻƻƳ ǘƻǿƴƘƻǳǎŜǎΣ ŀƭƭ 
with car-pads, being offered to the market at both developments.  Central Park has an alternative three 
bedroom option with a single, internally accessed garage. 

As the housing market changes UPLLP will remain agile, and be flexible with what type of housing product it 
ǊŜƭŜŀǎŜǎ ƛƴǘƻ ǘƘŜ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ŀƴŘ ŦƻǊ ƛǘǎ ƻǿƴ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘƛŀƭ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΦ  ²Ŝ ǿƛƭƭ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜ ǘƻ ŀƭƛƎƴ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊΩǎ 
Urban Growth Strategy (UGS) and its focus on meeting the UGS targets by 2032, as well as greater 
intensification on the valley floor via medium density developments. 

 

UPL Residential Portfolio Growth 

 
Molesworth Street Development 
 
Earlier this financial year, UPL acquired the Molesworth Street reserve from the Shareholder.  Additionally, 
UPL strategically purchased an adjacent residential property in Molesworth Street (Taita) to amalgamate with 
the reserve land, for greater utilisation of land and better yield of social housing units. 
 
Whilst still in the planning stages, this project could provide approx. eighteen additional units for low income 
elderly or wider social housing purposes.  It is anticipated these units will be completed in the 2021-22 
financial year.  
 
Infill of Existing Portfolio Properties 
 
tƭŀƴǎ ŀǊŜ ǳƴŘŜǊǿŀȅ ǘƻ ƛƴŦƛƭƭ ǳƴŘŜǊǳǘƛƭƛǎŜŘ ŀǊŜŀǎ ƻŦ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ¦t[Ωǎ ŜȄƛǎǘƛƴƎ ǊŜƴǘŀƭ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘƛŜǎ ƛƴ tŜǘƻƴŜΦ ¢ƘŜ 
current designs are for twelve (multi-level) one bedroom units to be added to the existing twenty seven units 
at 17 Britannia Street.  The additional units are viewed as a prudent intensification of an existing property and 
positive outcome for all tenants due to the high amenity value the property enjoys due to its close proximity 
ǘƻ WŀŎƪǎƻƴ {ǘǊŜŜǘΩǎ ŎƻƳƳŜǊŎƛŀƭ ǇǊŜŎƛƴŎǘΦ /ƻƳǇƭŜǘƛon of this infill project is planned to occur within the 2021-
22 financial year. 
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Initiatives and Considerations  

Affordable Housing  

To enable a chance for first home buyers to enter onto the property ladder, UPL released to the market ten of 
its thirty four Central Park on Copeland townhouses at $550,000 each, and five of the twenty seven The Lane 
ς Waterloo townhouses at between $535-000 and $550,000 each.  Purchasers had a set of requirements to 
qualify prior to contracts being deemed unconditional which targeted owner occupiers rather than investors.  
The company saw these as affordable price points, which resulted in several sales and achieved its purpose for 
assisting first home buyers to attain home ownership in Lower Hutt.  UPL will continue to release housing at 
affordable levels where it is prudently viable. 

Lowering Carbon Emissions 

The Shareholder has set a carbon zero objective, and as such UPL aims to align with this direction where 
possible.  UPL has, and will continue to, incorporate features into its dwelling design and development site 
layouts that lower carbon emissions.  Examples include using electricity or renewable sources of energy for 
space and water heating, minimising building waste, and making buildings ready for charging electric vehicles. 

 
HomeStar 6 Rating 

 
UPL will seek to incorporate design and environmental considerations into future projects, and align these 
with the HomeStar rating assessment to achieve no less than 6 stars in future housing development projects.  

 
Central Government Initiatives 

When sought by the Shareholder, UPL will look to support central government initiatives where it is 
financially, socially and environmentally prudent, and is to the overall betterment to Lower Hutt City.  Further, 
UPL will seek to work with any form of social or community housing providers which promote the growth of 
housing in Lower Hutt. 
 
Local Environmental Considerations 

 
When undertaking future developments requiring significant decisions on land and water, UPL will take into 
consideration the relationship of Maori and their culture, traditions and their relationship to land and water.  
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The Performance Measures  

The Company will meet the following measures for the next three years: 

Rental Housing 

1.1 Capital expenditure within budget. 

1.2 Operational expenditure within budget. 

1.3 An appropriate return on investment measure is currently being developed and will be included in the 
final SOI. 

1.4 ¢Ŝƴŀƴǘ ǎŀǘƛǎŦŀŎǘƛƻƴ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻǾƛǎƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǊŜƴǘŀƭ ƘƻǳǎƛƴƎ ƎǊŜŀǘŜr than or equal to 90%. 

1.5 Percentage of total housing units occupied by low-income elderly
2
 greater than or equal to 85%. 

1.6 wŜƴǘŀƭǎ ŎƘŀǊƎŜŘ ǎƘŀƭƭ ƴƻǘ ōŜ ƭŜǎǎ ǘƘŀƴ ул҈ ƻŦ ΨƳŀǊƪŜǘΩ ǊŜƴǘΦ* 

1.7 Increasing the portfolio size to 220 units by December 2021. 

1.8 By 30 June 2021, assess the performance of the rental housing portfolio against the HomeFit® standard.  

1.9 Any rental housing units purchased and not already utilising electricity or renewable sources of energy 
for space heating, water heating, and cooking facilities, shall be converted to utilise only electricity or 
renewable sources of energy within five years of acquisition. 

1.10 New rental housing units constructed by UPL to utilise only electricity or renewable sources of energy for 
space heating, water heating and cooking facilities. 

*  With market rents rising at greater than inflation, the current 2019/20 FY 85% target is becoming 
increasingly harder for our tenants to afford.  Subject to significant lifts on market rental income levels, 
the Board reserves to right to decide on the level of rentals charged per unit, on a case by case basis.  

 

 Property Development 

1.11 Capital expenditure within budget. 

1.12 Operational expenditure within budget. 

1.13 A return of not less than 10.0% after interest and tax on each project. 

1.14 From 1 July 2019, any new developments not already resource consented as at 30 June 2019, shall only 
utilise electricity or renewable sources of energy for space heating, water heating and cooking facilities. 

1.15 By the year ending 30 June 2021, at least one housing unit (standalone house or townhouse) shall 
achieve a certified HomeStar

TM
 rating of at least six stars. 

Professional Property Advice 

1.16 Achieve a market return on additional services provided to the Shareholder. 

UPL Developments Limited  

1.17 ¦ƴŘŜǊǘŀƪŜΣ ƴŜƎƻǘƛŀǘŜ ŀƴŘ ŜȄŜŎǳǘŜ ǘŜƴŘŜǊ ǇǊƻŎŜǎǎŜǎ ŦƻǊ ŀƴŘ ƻƴ ōŜƘŀƭŦ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ tŀǊǘƴŜǊǎƘƛǇ ŀƴŘ ΨǇŀǊŜƴǘΩ 
company as required. 

                                                      
2  Ψ[ƻǿ-ƛƴŎƻƳŜ ŜƭŘŜǊƭȅΩ ƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ ŎƻƴǘŜȄǘ ǊŜƭŀǘŜǎ ǘƻ ŀƴ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀƴǘ ŦƻǊ ŀ ǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘƛŀƭ ǘŜƴŀƴŎȅΣ ǘƘŀǘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǘƛƳŜ ƻŦ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴΣ ƛǎ ŀōƭŜ ǘo 

demonstrate: 
i. that they are eligible for National Super (aged over 65 years ς this being subject to review periodically by central Government) 
ii. that they have no other income 
iii. that they do not have cash or assets of such a magnitude that would mean they could make independent accommodation 

choices. 
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1.18 CŀŎƛƭƛǘŀǘŜ ŎƛǾƛƭ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴǎǘǊǳŎǘƛƻƴ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘǎ ŦƻǊ ŀƴŘ ƻƴ ōŜƘŀƭŦ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ tŀǊǘƴŜǊǎƘƛǇ ŀƴŘ ΨǇŀǊŜƴǘΩ company as 
required. 

1.19 Facilitate payment of contract progress claims for Board approved contracts as well as payments to 
other suppliers engaged to provide services or goods to defined development projects. 

1.20 Should UPLDL be used for future developments, the same performance measures apply as for Property 
Development (refer above). 

1.21 Act as General Partner when a Limited Partnership structure is utilised for development projects. 

UPL Limited Partnership  

1.22 Develop land in a manner which maximises its value at a level of risk appropriate for the investment of 
funds. 

1.23 To perform business undertakings in common with Urban Plus Limited with a view to profit from 
development projects for the purposes of funding for the elderly housing portfolio. 

1.24 Should UPLLP be used for future developments, the same performance measures apply as for Property 
Development (refer above). 
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Risk Management 

Health and Safety in Employment 
UPL will maintain best industry practice with ongoing reviews of its Health and Safety policies to ensure they 
ǊŜƳŀƛƴ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ΨƭŜŀŘƛƴƎ ŜŘƎŜΩ ƛƴ ǘŜǊƳǎ ƻŦ ŎƻƳǇƭƛŀƴŎŜΦ 
 
Business Continuity 
UPL will maintain a Business Continuity Plan for unforeseen circumstances so any event will have minimal 
impact on the day-to-day operation of the business. 
 
Insurances 
UPL will maintain appropriate insurances to mitigate risk of portfolio damage, business interruption and 
professional indemnity.  This will include Directors and Office Bearers cover where appropriate. 
 
Emergency preparedness 
UPL will rehearse and maintain systems and procedures to best position itself to deal with emergency 
situations.  
 
Commercial Risk 
UPL will manage its affairs in a manner that minimises commercial risk recognising that some risk will need to 
be taken to achieve targets. 

The Board of Directors  

The Board of Directors consists of three members, with the Shareholder appointing council representation as 
Director(s) and Independent Directors.  Directors serve three-year terms.   
 
The Board is responsible for the proper direction, governance and control of UPL.  
 
Unanimous approval of the Board is required for:  

1.1 Employment of staff and creation of new positions outside of resolved budget limits; 

1.2 Extraordinary transactions (entering into any contract or transaction except in the ordinary course of 
business); 

1.3 5ŜƭŜƎŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ǇƻǿŜǊǎ ǘƻ ŀƴȅ ǇŜǊǎƻƴΤ 

1.4 Major transactions (entering into any major transaction); 

1.5 Disputes (commencing or settling any litigation, arbitration or other proceedings which are significant 
ƻǊ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎύΤ 

1.6 .ƻǊǊƻǿƛƴƎǎ ƛƴ ŀ ƳŀƴƴŜǊ ǘƘŀǘ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭƭȅ ŀƭǘŜǊǎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ōŀƴƪƛƴƎ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜƳŜƴǘǎΣ ŀŘǾŀƴŎƛƴƎ ƻŦ 
credit (other than normal trade credit) exceeding $5,000 to any person except for making deposits with 
ōŀƴƪŜǊǎΣ ƻǊ ƎƛǾƛƴƎ ƻŦ ƎǳŀǊŀƴǘŜŜǎ ƻǊ ƛƴŘŜƳƴƛǘƛŜǎ ǘƻ ǎŜŎǳǊŜ ŀƴȅ ǇŜǊǎƻƴΩǎ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ƻǊ ƻōƭƛƎŀǘƛƻƴǎΤ 

1.7 Sale of assets (sell or dispose of fixed assets for a total price per transaction exceeding $100,000 or a 
series of transactions aggregated exceeds $300,000); and 

1.8 Capital expenditure (other than in the ordinary course of doing business) at a total cost to the 
Company, per transaction, exceeding $100,000 or a series of transactions aggregated exceeds 
$300,000. 

The Board will require the agreement of the Shareholder for: 

1.1 Any changes to the constitution; 

1.2 Any increases in capital and the issue of further securities, share buybacks and financial assistance; 
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1.3 Any alteration of rights attaching to shares; 

1.4 Any arrangement, dissolution, reorganisation, liquidation, merger or amalgamation of the Company; 
and 

1.5 !ƴȅ ΨƳŀƧƻǊ ǘǊŀƴǎŀŎǘƛƻƴǎΩ ŀǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǘŜǊƳ ƛǎ ŘŜŦƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ !Ŏǘ мффоΦ 

wŀǘƛƻ ƻŦ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ ŦǳƴŘǎ ǘƻ ǘƻǘŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ 

The target ratio for consolidated Shareholders' funds to total assets is at least 50%.  Consolidated 
Shareholders' funds comprise share capital and accumulated reserves.  Total assets comprise all tangible 
assets of the Company, the main component being housing and undeveloped land.  The forecast consolidated 
Shareholders funds as at June 2020 is 70%.  The share capital of $15.3 million consists of 27 million ordinary 
shares on issue, of which all are fully paid. 

Accumulated profits and capital reserves  

There is no intention to pay a dividend in the 2020/21 financial year or succeeding years. 

Information to be provided to Shareholders 

Lƴ ŜŀŎƘ ȅŜŀǊ ¦t[ ǎƘŀƭƭ ŎƻƳǇƭȅ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǎǇŜŎƛŦƛŜŘ ŦƻǊ //hΩǎ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ [ƻŎŀƭ 
Government Act 2002 and the Companies Act 1993 and regulations. 

In particular, it shall provide: 

Annually  

1. Annually report, within two months after the end of each financial year, which will include: 

2. A Statement of Intent detailing all matters required under the Local Government Act 2002; 

3. An annual budget for the coming financial year, broken out by the two major areas of operation; Rental 
Housing and Land Development, including the assets employed and debt attributable to each area; 

4. A written report on the financial operations of the Company to enable an informed assessment of its 
performance including a comparison against budget and the Statement of Intent and the Return on 
Equity and Return on Assets for the Period; 

5. Financial statements comprising the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive 
Revenue and Expenses and Statement of Cash Flows; 

6. A business plan indicating the nature of property development it proposes to undertake and the range 
of investment and estimated return it proposes to achieve; 

7. An assessment of the current market for rental housings and the appropriateness of the current 
housing portfolio to meet the needs of the low-income elderly. 

Half Yearly 

8. Six-monthly, within two-months of the end of the six month reporting period.  

9. A written report on the operations of the Company by the two major areas of operation to enable an 
informed assessment of its performance including a financial comparison against budget and the 
Statement of Intent and the Return on Equity and Return on Assets for the Period. 

10. Financial statements comprising the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive 
Revenue and Expenses and Statement of Cash Flows. 

11. Progress on activities outlined in the agreed business plan. 

Share acquisition  
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There is no intention to subscribe for shares in any other company or invest in any other organisation.   
(NOTE: UPL has a subsidiary company UPL Developments Limited). 

Compensation from local authority  

It is not anticipated that the company will seek compensation from any local authority other than in the 
context of normal commercial contractual relationships. 

NB: if a CCO has undertaken to obtain or has obtained compensation from its Shareholders in respect of any 
activity, this undertaking or the amount of compensation obtained will be recorded in: 

1. The annual report of the council-controlled organisation; and 

2. The annual report of the local authority.  

9ǉǳƛǘȅ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ 

CƻǊ ǘƘŜ ȅŜŀǊ ŜƴŘŜŘ ол WǳƴŜ нлнмΣ ǘƘŜ ŜǎǘƛƳŀǘŜŘ ƴŜǘ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊΩǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ ¦Ǌban Plus 
Group will be $43.144 million.   
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Financial Forecasts 

Planning and programming for development projects will be based on exceeding the agreed minimum 
financial performance thresholds of greater than [target to be confirmed once measure is finalised] in terms 
of residential portfolio returns (see Performance Measure 1.3 above), and 10.0% after interest and tax (see 
1.15 above) for commercial developments.  Each development project will require the approval of the Board 
to ensure strategic fit and achievement of the minimum rate of return. 
 
The current volatility of the property market and anticipated future interest rate increases has resulted in 
considerable uncertainty in terms of what projects will come available, and what sales might result from those 
projects.  The financial statements within this Statement of Intent therefore exclude potential development 
projects.  Details of potential development projects will be included in the regular reporting to the Board and 
Shareholder. 
 
The most recent residential development project was Parkview, in Avalon.  The project consisted of the 
construction and sale of twenty four stand-alone townhouses. The project was completed towards the end of 
the second quarter of the 2019/20 financial year, and cost $10.8M, and realised a pre-tax net gain of $4.5M.     
This commercial development project was managed by UPL Developments Limited  ς a wholly owned 
subsidiary of UPL providing property development management services ς through UPL Limited Partnership  ς 
a partnership between UPL Limited Partnership (as General Partner) and UPL (as Limited Partner). 
 
The success of the Parkview development will enable UPL to not only strengthen its financial position, but also 
to reinvest the profits of the development in to its residential housing portfolio in order to achieve the 
company goal of 220 residential units by December 2021. 

 
¢ƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘǎ ǿƘƛŎƘ ŀǊŜ ōƻǘƘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎǘǊǳŎǘƛƻƴ ǇƘŀǎŜ ŀǊŜ /ŜƴǘǊŀƭ tŀǊƪ ƻƴ 
Copeland and The Lane, Waterloo.  The first mentioned is a thirty-four townhouse development on part of the 
former Copeland Street Reserve land in Epuni which is forecast to have a pre-tax net gain of $7.4m.  The latter 
is a twenty-seven townhouse development in Waterloo ς on land owned by UPL which is forecast to have a 
pre-tax net gain of $3.3m. All sixty-one townhouses are now sold, and are programmed to be completed 
within the 2020-21 financial year. 
 
The planned Jackson Street apartments remain on hold.  UPL is reviewing construction costs, as well as 
seeking opportunities in the market for joint venture options with other social / community housing providers 
where ownership could be transferred; but end-result social housing options are still attained. Such an 
outcome will provide the planned outcome, but frees UPL to progress other opportunities to continue growth 
in other areas of Lower Hutt. 
 
The original target date for UPL to achieve 220 rental units was 30 June 2020.  This target date will not be 
achieved based on the current development programme with only 199 units projected as at 30 June 2020.  
The target of 220 units is now expected to be achieved by December 2021.  However during this time frame 
UPL will have developed and sold to the private market, 105 houses, the profits from which will fund the 
ƎǊƻǿǘƘ ƛƴ ¦t[Ωǎ ǊŜƴǘŀƭ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻ ǿƛǘƘƻǳǘ ǊŜǉǳƛǊƛƴƎ ǊŀǘŜǇŀȅŜǊ ŀǎǎƛǎǘŀƴŎŜΦ  
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The financial forecasts, the projected number of rental units, and the numbers of houses developed and sold 
to the market over the period covered by this SOI is based on the following 4 year development programme: 
 

 
 
The original 220 rental units target could be achieved earlier but this would require additional funding from 
ǘƘŜ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊ ŜƛǘƘŜǊ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ŀƴ Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ƛƴƧŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻǊ ŀǇǇǊƻǾƛƴƎ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎŜǎ ǘƻ ¦t[Ωǎ ŀǾailable credit lines, i.e., 
loans. 
 
Until there is more certainty on what the Shareholder wants to do with the current library site in Petone, this 
ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ ƻǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘȅ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ŜȄŎƭǳŘŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ¦t[Ωǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŦƻǊŜŎŀǎǘǎΦ  {ƛƳƛƭŀǊƭȅΣ ǳƴǘƛƭ ŀ ŘŜŎƛǎƛƻƴ Ƙŀǎ 
bŜŜƴ ƳŀŘŜ ƻƴ ¦t[Ωǎ WŀŎƪǎƻƴ {ǘǊŜŜǘ ǎƛǘŜΣ ǘƘƛǎ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ ƻǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘȅ Ƙŀǎ ŀƭǎƻ ōŜŜƴ ŜȄŎƭǳŘŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ¦t[Ωǎ 
financial forecasts. 
 
No provision has been made in the financial forecasts for possible gains from property revaluations.  Any gains 
would not have any impact on cash/debt but would result in deferred tax liabilities which would remain until 
the underlying properties are sold by UPL. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

UPL Rental Portfolio 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

SOI Year Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

Opening Number 151 189 189 199 217

Boothby Street - purchase 7

Bauchop Road -12 to make way for the Lane development 

51 & 53 Hall Crescent -2 to make way for Central Park development

17 Britannia Street - purchase 27

17 Britannia Street - build 10

38 Britannia Street - purchase 18

Molesworth Street - build 18

The Next Development - build 20

Jackson Street

7 Britannia Street (current Library site)

Closing Number 189 189 199 217 237

UPL Developments 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total <$550k >$550k

SOI Year Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

Fairfield Waters 6 20 6 14

Park View 6 18 24 0 24

Central Park on Copeland 34 34 10 24

the Lane 27 27 10 17

12 18 61 0 0 105 26 79

Net contribution to Urban Growth Strategy target 43 18 71 18 20 170
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Performance 
 

 
 

 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
 

 
 
  

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Actual Forecast Budget Plan Plan Plan

REVENUE

Rental Revenue 1,859,965      2,277,118      2,343,751      2,391,833      2,437,101      2,489,737      

Property Management Fees 237,129          -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Other Management Fees -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Finance Revenue 85,379            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Commercial Development Sales 5,897,555      12,657,062    32,641,304    -                   -                   -                   

Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment -                   109,881          -                   -                   -                   -                   

Other Revenue 200,174          -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Revenue 8,280,202      15,044,061    34,985,055    2,391,833      2,437,101      2,489,737      

EXPENSES

Personnel Expenses 844,264          798,479          812,520          826,830          841,441          856,340          

Rates 165,901          170,878          176,859          183,049          208,771          216,947          

Repairs & Maintenance 277,330          282,877          282,877          282,877          311,716          312,970          

Insurance 134,492          141,217          169,460          177,933          205,877          217,040          

Specialist Services 215,045          106,004          106,004          106,004          106,004          106,004          

Operational Contracts 60,465            67,944            67,944            67,944            67,944            67,944            

HCC Support Costs 85,000            136,184          138,900          141,672          144,504          147,396          

Other Operating Expenses 273,966          272,900          264,370          264,840          265,340          265,840          

Asset Write-Offs -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Agents Fees & Marketing 308,813          269,883          625,783          -                   -                   -                   

Cost of Commercial Development Sales 4,005,658      6,460,940      22,162,679    -                   -                   -                   

Total Expenses 6,370,934      8,707,305      24,807,395    2,051,148      2,151,596      2,190,481      

OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 1,909,268      6,336,756      10,177,660    340,685          285,505          299,256          

Depreciation 628,517          638,691          643,343          682,348          787,680          913,142          

Finance Expenses 470,582          693,584          655,629          545,403          749,592          891,267          

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) before Tax 810,169          5,004,481      8,878,688      (887,066)        (1,251,767)     (1,505,153)     

Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit (153,731)        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

SURPLUS/DEFICIT after TAX 963,900          5,004,481      8,878,688      (887,066)        (1,251,767)     (1,505,153)     

Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses

Gain on Property Revaluation 4,030,002      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Less: Tax on Revaluation 369,576          -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses 4,399,578      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE and EXPENSES 5,363,478      5,004,481      8,878,688      (887,066)        (1,251,767)     (1,505,153)     

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Actual Forecast Budget Plan Plan

Balance at 1 July 23,897,764    29,261,242    34,265,723    43,144,411    42,257,345    

Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expenses for the Year 5,363,478      5,004,481      8,878,688      (887,066)        (1,251,767)     

Balance at 30 June 29,261,242    34,265,723    43,144,411    42,257,345    41,005,577    
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
 

 
 
  

As at 30 June 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Actual Forecast Budget Plan Plan

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 367,271          216,967          18,846,977    17,539,288    17,387,801    

Debtors & Other Receivables 60,248            32,717            32,717            32,717            32,717            

Inventories 9,200,230      16,438,035    0                       0                       0                       

Total current assets 9,627,749      16,687,718    18,879,694    17,572,005    17,420,518    

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 33,884,552    33,475,973    33,067,344    36,856,144    39,636,161    

Assets Under Construction 1,809,697      2,751,835      6,565,335      6,908,300      9,609,696      

Loan to Related Party -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total non-current assets 35,694,249    36,227,808    39,632,680    43,764,444    49,245,857    

TOTAL ASSETS 45,321,998    52,915,527    58,512,374    61,336,449    66,666,375    

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Creditors & Other Payables 750,548          1,946,160      464,319          375,460          657,153          

Employee Entitlements 11,127            11,127            11,127            11,127            11,127            

Other Liabilities 445,339          38,776            38,776            38,776            38,776            

Total Current Liabilities 1,207,014      1,996,063      514,222          425,363          707,056          

Non-Current Liabilities

Employee Entitlements 29,017            29,017            29,017            29,017            29,017            

Borrowings 13,000,000    14,800,000    13,000,000    16,800,000    23,100,000    

Deferred Tax Liability 1,824,724      1,824,724      1,824,724      1,824,724      1,824,724      

Total Non-Current Liabilities 14,853,741    16,653,741    14,853,741    18,653,741    24,953,741    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,060,755    18,649,804    15,367,963    19,079,104    25,660,797    

NET ASSETS 29,261,243    34,265,723    43,144,411    42,257,345    41,005,577    

EQUITY

Retained Earnings (2,878,711)     2,125,769      11,004,457    10,117,391    8,865,623      

Share Capital 15,300,000    15,300,000    15,300,000    15,300,000    15,300,000    

Revaluation Reserve 16,839,954    16,839,954    16,839,954    16,839,954    16,839,954    

TOTAL EQUITY 29,261,243    34,265,723    43,144,411    42,257,345    41,005,577    

GEARING (Debt + overdraft : Debt + Equity) 31% 30% 23% 28% 36%
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

 

 

  

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Actual Forecast Budget Plan Plan

CASH FLOWS from OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:

Receipts from Rent and Leases 1,859,965      2,764,710      2,612,811      2,401,393      2,447,161      

Receipts from Management Fees 237,129          -                   -                   -                   -                   

Receipts from Other Revenue 200,174          -                   -                   -                   -                   

Interest Received 85,379            114,713          110,590          -                   -                   

Receipts from Commercial Development Sales 5,897,555      12,657,062    32,641,304    -                   -                   

8,280,202      15,536,485    35,364,705    2,401,393      2,447,161      

Cash was applied to:

Payments to Employees (844,264)        (798,479)        (812,520)        (826,830)        (841,441)        

Payments to Suppliers (799,863)        (2,694,749)     (1,992,382)     (1,217,187)     (1,312,361)     

Interest Paid (470,582)        (693,584)        (655,629)        (545,403)        (749,592)        

Tax Paid -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Costs of Commercial Development Sales (1,783,404)     (12,835,359)  (7,659,500)     -                   -                   

(3,898,113)     (17,022,171)  (11,120,031)  (2,589,420)     (2,903,393)     

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 4,382,089      (1,485,686)     24,244,675    (188,027)        (456,232)        

CASH FLOWS from INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 2,847,663      586,957          -                   -                   -                   

2,847,663      586,957          -                   -                   -                   

Cash was applied to:

Purchase and Construction of Property, Plant and Equipment (60,301)           (1,051,575)     (3,814,664)     (4,919,663)     (5,995,254)     

(60,301)           (1,051,575)     (3,814,664)     (4,919,663)     (5,995,254)     

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 2,787,362      (464,618)        (3,814,664)     (4,919,663)     (5,995,254)     

CASH FLOWS from FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:

Proceeds from Borrowings -                   1,800,000      3,900,000      3,800,000      6,300,000      

-                   1,800,000      3,900,000      3,800,000      6,300,000      

Cash was applied to:

Repayment of Borrowings -                   -                   (5,700,000)     -                   -                   

Repayment of Advance from Hutt City Council (149,379)        -                   -                   -                   -                   

(149,379)        -                   (5,700,000)     -                   -                   

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (149,379)        1,800,000      (1,800,000)     3,800,000      6,300,000      

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) in CASH and CASH EQUIVALENTS7,020,072      (150,304)        18,630,011    (1,307,690)     (151,486)        

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year (6,652,801)     367,271          216,967          18,846,977    17,539,288    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 367,271          216,967          18,846,977    17,539,288    17,387,801    
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Statement of Accounting Policies  

 
UPL will apply the following accounting policies consistently during the year and apply these policies to the 
statement of intent. In accordance with the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants Financial 
Reporting Standard 42 (FRS 42), the following information is provided in respect of the statement of intent. 

Cautionary note  

¢ƘŜ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ƛƴǘŜƴǘΩǎ ŦƻǊŜŎŀǎǘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛal information is prospective. Actual results are likely to vary from 
the information presented, and the variations may be material.  

Nature of prospective information  

The financial information presented consists of forecasts that have been prepared on the basis of best 
estimates and assumptions on future events that Urban Plus Limited expects to take place.  

Statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standard  

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand generally accepted accounting 
practice. They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) 
and other applicable financial reporting standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities.  

Reporting entity  

UPL is a company registered under the Companies Act 1993 and a council-controlled trading organisation as 
defined by Section 6 of the Local Government Act 2002. Hutt City Council is the only shareholder. The 
company was incorporated in New Zealand in 13 December 1996 as De Luien Developments Limited, changed 
its name to Centre City Plaza Limited on 27 June 1997, changed its name to Hutt Holdings Limited on 20 
January 2003 and finally changed its name to Urban Plus Limited on 25 May 2007. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
1993, the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and the Local Government Act 2002.  
 
For purposes of financial reporting, UPL is a public benefit entity. 

Reporting period  

The reporting period covers the 12 months from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.  Comparative projected figures 
for the year ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 are provided. 

Specific accounting policies  

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
financial statements.  
 
The measurement basis applied is historical cost. 
 
The accrual basis of accounting has been used unless otherwise stated.  These financial statements are 
presented in New Zealand dollars rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated. 

Judgements and estimations  

Preparing financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  Where 
material, information on the major assumptions is provided in the relevant accounting policy or will be 
provided in the relevant note to the financial statements.  
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period 
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.  
 
Judgements that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of 
material adjustment in the next year are discussed in the relevant notes. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. 

Debtors and other receivables 

Debtors and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. 

Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received. 

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 
transaction at balance date, based on the actual service provided as a percentage of the total services to be 
provided. 

Sales of goods are recognised when a product is sold to the customer.  The recorded revenue is the gross 
amount of the sale, including credit card fees payable for the transaction.  Such fees are included in other 
expenses. 

Property sales are recognised on settlement date, along with the related expenses  

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. 

Property, plant and equipment  

On transition to NZ IFRS assets were recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
 
Revaluation 
Land and buildings are revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amount does not differ 
materially from fair value and at least every three years.  All other asset classes are carried at depreciated 
historical cost.  The carrying values of revalued assets are assessed annually to ensure that they do not differ 
ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭƭȅ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘǎΩ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜǎΦ  LŦ ǘƘŜǊŜ ƛǎ ŀ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜΣ ǘƘŜƴ ǘƘŜ ƻŦŦ-cycle asset classes are 
revalued.  

Revaluations of property, plant, and equipment are accounted for on a class-of-asset basis. 

The net revaluation results are credited or debited to other comprehensive income and are accumulated to an 
asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset.  Where this would result in a debit balance in the 
asset revaluation reserve, this balance is not recognised in other comprehensive income but is recognised in 
the surplus or deficit.  Any subsequent increase on revaluation that reverses a previous decrease in value 
recognised in the surplus or deficit will be recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to the amount previously 
expensed, and then recognised in other comprehensive income. 

Additions 
Expenditure of a capital nature of $500 or more has been capitalised.  Expenditure of less than $500 has been 
charged to operating expenditure. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an 
asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item 
will flow to UPL and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
  



Attachment 1  Appendix 1 UPL Group Draft Statement of Intent 2019 -2022 

 

 

 

DEM15-4-2 - 20/12 - Urban Plus Group Draft Statement of Intent 2020/21 to 2022/23 Page  77 
 

Disposals 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the 
asset.  Gains and losses on disposals are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Subsequent costs 
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to UPL and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on all property, plant and equipment at rates that will write 
off the cost (valuation) of the assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives.  The straight line 
depreciation rates are as follows: 
 

Estimated economic lives Years Rate 

Buildings 5 - 65 1.54% - 20.00% 

Plant and equipment 8 - 11 9.09% - 12.50% 

Leasehold improvements 4 - 5 20.00% - 25.00% 

 

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed and adjusted if applicable at each financial year end. 

Intangible assets 

Software acquisition and development 
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to 
use the specific software.  Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense 
when incurred.  Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use by UPL, 
are recognised as an intangible asset. 

Amortisation 
The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful 
life.  Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is 
derecognised.  The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. 

The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated as 
follows: 

 

Estimated economic lives Years Rate 

Computer software 2.8  36% 

 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets with a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
ƛƴŘƛŎŀǘŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ Ƴŀȅ ƴƻǘ ōŜ ǊŜŎƻǾŜǊŀōƭŜΦ  LŦ ŀƴ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ŜȄŎŜŜŘǎ ƛǘǎ 
recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is written down to the recoverable 
amount.  The total impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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Goods and services tax 

All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables.  Where 
GST is not recoverable as input tax then it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is included as 
part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 

Employee entitlements 

Short-term entitlements 
Employee benefits that UPL expects to be settled within 12 months of balance date are measured at nominal 
values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.  These include salaries and wages accrued up to 
balance date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at balance date, retiring and long service leave 
entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months, and sick leave. 

UPL recognises a liability for sick leave to the extent that absences in the coming year are expected to be 
greater than the sick leave entitlements earned in the coming year.  The amount is calculated based on the 
unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance date, to the extent that UPL anticipates 
it will be used by staff to cover those future absences. 

UPL recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses where contractually obliged or where there is a past 
practice that has created a constructive obligation. 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value.  After initial recognition, all borrowings are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Creditors and other payables 

Creditors and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

Income tax 

Income tax for the period is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in 
respect of the taxable profit or tax loss for the period.  It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.  Current tax for current and prior periods is 
recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable). 

Property intended for sale 
Property previously held but now being sold as it is no longer required is classified as a property held for sale. 

This classification is used where the carrying amount of the property will be recovered through sale, the 
property is available for immediate sale in its present condition and sale is highly probable. 

Property held for sale is recorded at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  From 
the time a property is classified as held for sale, depreciation is no longer charged on the improvements. 

Where property is held for sale or for development for sale, in the ordinary course of business, it is classified 
as inventory.  Such property is recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value (selling price less costs to 
complete and sale costs).  Any write-downs to net realisable value are expensed in the net surplus/(deficit) for 
the year. 
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Leased assets 

Operating Leases 
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased 
items are classified as operating leases.  Payments made under these leases are expensed in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Lease incentives received are 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an integral part of the total lease payment. 

Finance Leases 
The Company has not entered into any material finance leases. 

Financial instruments 

The Company is party to financial instrument arrangements as part of its normal operation.  Revenue and 
expenses in relation to all financial instruments are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

!ƭƭ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƛƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ tƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀǎƛǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
accounting policies.  All financial instruments disclosed on the Statement of Financial Position are recorded at 
fair value other than those specifically identified in the Notes to the financial statements. 
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Urban Plus Registered Office and Contact Details for Key 
Officers 

 

Registered office 30 Laings Road, Lower Hutt 5010 

Contact details for Chairman and Chief Executive  Private Bag 31912, Lower Hutt 5040 

Telephone 04 569 1000 
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